
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

 
 

October 10, 2023 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Rolling Hills  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.RollingHillsCDD.com 

 
October 3, 2023 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Rolling Hills Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 
October 10, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley 
Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (Regarding Agenda Items Listed Below) 
 
 III. Organizational Matters 
  A. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor Church 
 
  B. Acceptance of Resignation Letter from Supervisor Rhein 
 
  C. Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Unexpired Term of Office 

(11/2026) 
 
  D. Election of Officers, Resolution 2024-01 
 
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the June 13, 2023 and August 15, 2023 Meetings 
 
 V. Series 2020 Project 
  A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 
 
  B. Ratification of Requisitions (101-102) 
 
 VI. Series 2022 Project: 
  A. Update Regarding Series 2022 Project 
 
  B. Ratification of Requisitions (103-107) 

http://www.rollinghillscdd.com/


 
 VII. Consideration of Amenity Facility Policy Updates   
  
 VIII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
  
 B.  Engineer  
  
  C. Manager  
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
    1. Report 
 
    2. Monthly Quality Inspection Report 
     
 IX. Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 X. Audience Comments 
  
 XI. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
 XII. Next Scheduled Meeting: December 12, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills 

Amenity Center 
 
 XIII. Adjournment 
 
 
 
Community Interest: 
 A. Amenity Center – 
 B. Security & Technology –Supervisor Miller 
 C. Communications, Programming/Events, Finance & Accounting – Chairperson 

Jordan 
 D. Landscape & Pond Maintenance – Supervisor Rhein  
 E. Common Areas – Supervisor Cormier 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



From: Jeff Rhein <jeffrhcdd@gmail.com> 
Subject: CDD Seat Resignation 
Date: October 3, 2023 at 12:27:35 PM EDT 
To: Marilee Giles <mgiles@gmsnf.com>, Jay Soriano <jsoriano@gmsnf.com> 
Cc: Jeff Rhein <jeffrhcdd@gmail.com> 
 
Marilee and Jay, 
 
I have moved out of the community. As our policy states a board member must be a 
resident of the community, I am submitting my resignation.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Jeff 
 

mailto:jeffrhcdd@gmail.com
mailto:mgiles@gmsnf.com
mailto:jsoriano@gmsnf.com
mailto:jeffrhcdd@gmail.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE ROLLING 
HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community Development District at a 
regular business meeting held on October 10, 2023 desires to elect the below recited persons to the offices 
specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 1.  The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
    Chairman 
    Vice-Chairman  
  Marilee Giles  Secretary 
  Marilee Giles  Treasurer 

  Daniel Laughlin  Assistant Treasurer  
  Patti Powers  
  Howard McGaffney  
  Darrin Mossing  
  James Oliver  
  Daniel Laughlin  Assistant Secretary(s) 
  Rich Hans  

  Howard McGaffney  
  James Oliver  
  Darrin Mossing  
    
    
    

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 10TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 
 
   
 Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
   
 Secretary / Assistant Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ROLLING HILLS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Tuesday, June 13, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. in the Rolling Hills Amenity 

Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Shannon Jordan Chairperson 
 John Miller Vice Chairman 
 Helana Cormier Supervisor 
 Jeff Rhein Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Keith Hadden District Engineer 
 Joe Schofield Align Engineering by telephone 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Jay Soriano Operations Manager 
 Several Residents 
 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the June 13, 2023 meeting.   

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 

A. Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor Riggs 

 Ms. Giles stated we have a resignation from Supervisor Riggs who has moved out of the 

district and before we accept his resignation, I have a plaque of appreciation for his service on the 

board. 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
Nate Riggs resignation was accepted. 

 

B. Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Unexpired Term of Office (11/2026) 

  

C. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 

  

D. Election of Officers, Resolution 2023-04 

 Items B, C, D, were tabled to give staff an opportunity to send an eblast notifying the 

residents of the vacancy and requesting letters of interest or resumes.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the April 11, 2023 
Meeting 

 Ms. Cormier stated in the minutes I had a response, but I don’t remember the quote and I 

want to see if you would be able to go back and review that. 

 Ms. Giles stated I must have missed that email.  I will check on that.   

 Ms. Cormier stated it was a statement I made that is important to me that it is not in the 

minutes. 

 Ms. Giles stated there are times when pens are clicking, papers shuffling, or chairs 

squeaking and the transcriptionist can’t make out who is saying something.  The requirement in 

the statute is that we have minutes so if she can’t make out what is said she does the best she can.   

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 

 Mr. Hadden stated LGI closed on four lots last week and they own the entire cul-de-sac.  

We are ready to close on the second cul-de-sac except that the only county inspector that can 

inspect that is on vacation until next Monday.  When he inspects it then LGI has 15 days to close 

on the lots.   

 Jeff sent me an email about the entrance needs a lot of maintenance.  I reached out to 

Vallencourt and they said it really wasn’t ours to maintain so I said just go in and mow it.  It hasn’t 

been grassed professionally yet.  There was an open hole for an AT&T pull box and I don’t know 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

who unbolted it and the lid is gone so I called AT&T and asked them to put a new lid there for 

safety.   

 Ms. Jordan asked can you put caution tape around it until they get it fixed? 

 Mr. Hadden stated I will but I’m hoping by the end of this week AT&T has a new lid. 

 Ms. Giles stated that is the kind of email we appreciate getting during the week from 

residents or a supervisor.  Thanks for sending that ahead of time, we don’t want anyone to trip and 

get hurt.   

 Mr. Soriano stated when they are developing like that, there are protections in the county 

that they are not required to clean that up.  If Vallencourt comes out and mows, then you will see 

it better.  We would have to tape off a big section to keep everybody back from that.  That is not 

our property but in a case like this we are going to take care of it.   

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2022 Project 

A. Update Regarding Series 2022 Project 

 Mr. Schofield stated we are about 98% complete, plat recorded, Adams Homes is working 

on pulling the building permits.  There is some underdrain to install, that is kind of the last item 

for construction and a little seeding and sodding.  We are near completion, and you will start seeing 

homes going vertical soon.  I will work toward project close-out and then it will be vertical 

construction. 

 

B. Ratification of Requisitions 93 - 95 

  

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Rhein with all in favor 
requisitions 93-95 were ratified. 

 

C. Ratification of Change Orders 001-008 

 Ms. Buchanan stated a lot of these change orders are for small amounts, cleaning things up 

in the field but we did ask Joe to bring them back because I think it is appropriate for the board to 

ratify them because it was a district contract.  The one thing I think we want to talk about tonight 

and is the one that Joe is here to present is contract modification no. 7 and that is page 61 on my 

PDF and is a high dollar change order for $567,664 to install underdrain and cleanouts and it shows 

on the plans.  This is a utility requirement that at the beginning of a contract the developer was 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

4 

uncertain whether it was going to have to do this work so they didn’t include it, in hopes that they 

did not have to pay the extra half million to do the work.  At this point they have been advised that 

it is required and what they would like to do is add it to the district contract so that they are able 

to take advantage of the tax-exempt savings with the direct purchase of material.   

 Mr. Schofield stated that was a business decision.  The permit was issued with plans 

showing the roadway underdrain throughout most of the community and that is to keep the 

groundwater out of the roadway base material because when it gets wet you start having problems.  

The county is going to own and maintain the roadway, so they want to make sure their rock stays 

dry so they require underdrain under certain parameters.  Where the groundwater is getting too 

close to the rock you have to draw it down with the underdrain perforated pipe system.  What we 

were attempting to do was to build a sufficient amount of the project and then perform additional 

analysis to determine if that much underdrain was in fact required.  The decision was made to 

exclude that line item in the contract being uncertain as to how much underdrain might be needed 

after the additional analysis was performed during construction.  We were unsuccessful, we found 

that we needed to solve it with the underdrain and that became a contract supplemental for the 

underdrain as required by the county.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated the bonds have been expended so this is going to be part of the 

developer’s completion obligation meaning they are going to have to pay to finish the contract, 

because we don’t have bond proceeds anymore. 

 Ms. Jordan stated this increase will not impact the residents; the developer is going to have 

pay the difference. 

 Mr. Rhein asked why do we have to ratify it if it doesn’t cost us anything? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated it is our contract.   

 Mr. Rhein asked who did the analysis for modification 7? 

 Mr. Schofield stated the Geotech.  At the time the work was done we were in a drought, so 

the timing did not work out favorably.  

 Mr. Rhein asked who came up with the cost? 

 Ms. Buchanan asked Joe, can you confirm that Pipeline provided the cost based on the 

specifications that were initially authorized by the county. 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

5 

 Mr. Schofield stated that line item was excluded from the contract so we don’t have a unit 

price, that would be a couple years old now so Pipeline used today’s pricing, which I determined 

to be probably lower than the average bid coming in now.   

 Ms. Cormier asked what was the total bond amount on that portion?  I don’t understand 

how they are out of bond money. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated the bonds were issued in the amount of $10,500,000, but out of that 

amount of bonds that were issued only $7,700,000 went into the construction account for use on 

the project.  The rest of it goes to things like debt service reserve, capitalized interest, cost of 

issuance, you don’t ever get the total amount.   

 Ms. Cormier stated okay, the math didn’t make sense at first.   

 Mr. Rhein asked can we have a bond training session? 

 Ms. Giles responded I will check on that.  I will see if we can get someone qualified to do 

that. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Rhein with all in favor 
change order no. 7 in the amount of $567,664 was approved. 

 

 Ms. Giles stated I will bring back all eight of them so you see them in chronological order.   

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for Fiscal Year 
2024 

 Mr. Rhein stated these contracts don’t expire until November.  Are we doing these for 

budget purposes? 

 Ms. Giles stated that should be September 30th and they start October 1.  Did you see that 

somewhere? 

 Mr. Rhein stated in previous contracts. 

 Ms. Giles stated you are looking at the landscape contract and at the top it says as of 

November 15th of that year, but the term of that service was October 1, 2020 through September 

30, 2023.  We try to line all the contracts with our budget that starts October 1 and goes through 

September 30th.   

 

A. Riverside Management Services 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

6 

 Ms. Giles stated the first one is Riverside Management Services and there is a side-by-side 

comparison.   

 Mr. Soriano stated there was a question about the hours, the 2,037.7 basically they went 

through the calendar and added up what you have planned right now; you have lifeguards on 

Thursday, Friday, Saturday, and Sunday and that is how they came up with the number.  It is your 

request as to how many days you want and how many lifeguards.  It is billed by the hour and that 

is why you are always under budget because you don’t use anywhere near 2,000 hours. 

 Ms. Cormier stated I have a concern with some of the quality of work that we receive from 

Riverside Management from some of the different contractors and people they have hired.  We 

know Freddie is fabulous and you work for our community.  Do not take anything personal on that 

one.  When it comes to the quality of work it has been a struggle with some of the different people. 

 Ms. Jordan asked what specifically? 

 Mr. Rhein stated the pool guys left a mess. 

 Mr. Soriano stated the pool guy doesn’t have anything to do with this, they are a sub-

contractor.   

 Ms. Cormier stated correct and that is where I have asked some of the questions on the 

present audit.  I talked to Marilee about that one.  You see the breakdown in here of the different 

jobs and different invoices and some of it is your manhours, your people when they are out there 

painting or doing different things.  Over the years and continually this past year the quality of the 

workmanship that we get for what we pay is still an issue.  I wish we had better services. 

 Ms. Jordan asked what specifically? 

 Ms. Cormier stated the janitor, the work that the janitor does.  One of the problems is I 

don’t know whether their employees are doing the work or a sub-contractor is doing the work.  If 

it is a sub-contract that Riverside uses, I don’t know the difference so I don’t want to say the wrong 

words.  Job descriptions is huge.  When you look at what we paid the pool person, who is with 

Riverside, they go in, clean the pool, scrub the pool, they do everything they do when they service 

it.  But we still have green spots, we still have stuff. 

 Ms. Jordan stated the pool is going to have that until we redo the pool.  The reason I’m 

asking for specifics is because I don’t think there is anything you can say against RMS and the 

work they provide us.  We have had problems with some vendors.  Problems have happened but 

how this company has handled the problems is significant.   



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

7 

 Ms. Cormier stated we will agree to disagree but when you see the pressure washing jobs 

they do and that is where I want clarity on what is their employees versus sub-contractors.  Forget 

the pool issue that just happened, that is another ballgame.  The daily maintenance that they do 

with the operations with the janitor, pool cleaning, we believe they do when they come in and do 

stuff, when they have their pressure washing people, is that your employees, is it a sub-contractor.   

 Mr. Soriano stated depending on what it is, what is listed here is RMS.  Pool maintenance, 

when people hear that term they think a lot of different things.  The work you just had on gutters 

and our zero entry, that is not the same as this pool maintenance.  That is just a cleaning guy.  Right 

now, because of the age and the problems with your pool you are in the top, with more than 500 

hours a year and it has been that way for quite some time.  Here, this was originally based on 12 

hours a week, more like 392 and we have kind of stuck to that.  We are probably about $28 or $29 

an hour for pool service.  If you want more than that you are definitely going to have to go up 

because that pool takes a lot of work.  We can add it.  We have never tried to add it here over the 

years.  In fact, here the problem has been there was never a lot of money so the idea has been to 

try to cut it as low as possible.  You have not had money to add services onto more janitorial time.  

Janitorial is RMS not a sub-contractor and in the summer they get run over.  Pressure washing is 

different, it is not part of this.  That is your general maintenance and you pay for that per hour and 

if you are not happy with the service you can talk about that when you get that invoice.  They do 

charge by the hour so you sometimes have less than 10 hours a week in your budget over the years 

to do maintenance on this big facility   You have to try to find ways to get that in or you go over 

budget.  One thing Freddie has been able to do over the years making sure to not go over budget.  

Not until this year have you had the funds to start putting more maintenance hours to different 

lines.   

 Mr. Rhein stated I feel that the amenity center could use some love.  Do we need to add 

more maintenance? 

 Mr. Soriano stated definitely, but it is not in this because you never set it up to adjust pay 

for a consistent amount of hours.  It is needed but you have budget constraints. 

 Ms. Cornier stated we do pay for services and I feel they should do a better job.  I 

understand when they submit the different work orders and they get paid through the repair and 

maintenance line.  That $40,000 in both line items, does some of the work that you do come out 

of that portion of the budget? 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

8 

 Mr. Soriano stated you don’t pay me at all.  There is a repair and replacement line.  That is 

not the amenity manager or the operations manager.   

 Ms. Cormier stated not those positions. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that $80,000 for the two includes supplies and a laborer’s time.  One 

good maintenance guy fulltime would be more than that just for the labor.  I think that is needed 

but it is not in the budget. 

 Mr. Rhein asked what about a parttime maintenance guy? 

 Mr. Soriano stated I would love to find a qualified parttime guy, especially if he lived in 

the neighborhood.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I will move to approve this and next year we can talk about hiring more 

people. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I would like to see the scope. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I think we did this last year.   

 Ms. Giles stated it is in the last agreement and I can send this to you.  This is one every 

year the board will approve. 

 Mr. Rhein stated Tree Amigos did the same thing and didn’t include a scope and that is 

more and that is more concerning. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we have the original scope for the first year for Tree Amigos and we 

can update that too.   

 Ms. Giles stated we have a scope of services.   

 Mr. Soriano stated we will update the hourly, pool service, janitorial services, lifeguards, 

deck monitors and facilities assistance.  We didn’t have that last year so we can add those in. 

 Mr. Rhein asked should we wait?  I don’t sign stuff before I see everything. 

 Ms. Giles stated this has janitor, pool maintenance services, lifeguard services, facility 

management, facility operations and staffing services.  It is already in there. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated to better define your question is that we have a scope.  Do you want 

changes to this scope? 

 Mr. Rhein stated I didn’t have a chance to look at the scope.  I looked at the one from 2019. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we have one for 2023.  The one from 2019 I’m confident it is dated 

but this one is from last year short of the facility attendant I think everything else is included.  We 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

9 

noticed there was sort of a lackluster scope attached last year and made an effort to improve it.  

You can approve it and delegate authority to a single person to sign off on the scope of work.   

 Mr. Rhein stated the amenity manager, operations manager, pool service and janitorial all 

have a 6% raise, which is high especially since inflation rate is coming down from 8% to 5% and 

we are 4.9% right now and it is going to end up around 2.23% next year.  The best I can do is raise 

you 4.9%. 

 Mr. Soriano stated it is not just about my job but all the hourly people.  If you want to 

negotiate we are open to negotiation but if you want to start cutting people, super low just to save 

dollars you are not going to get good quality employees and it creates a problem.   

 Mr. Rhein stated right now it is 4.9% inflation.   

 Ms. Jordan stated there were years they did not increase us.   

 Mr. Soriano stated you are talking about inflation coming down for next year.  One problem 

we have with our hourly people is that we have an automatic $1 increase based on fulltime person, 

you are automatically getting a $2,000 increase based on something we have to do, we have to pay 

those people $1 more.  If there is a minimum wage employee we are not keeping minimum wage 

employees it creates more of a trouble internally. When I have somebody who is $17 or $18 and a 

new guy just started and a month later he gets $1 more then I have to give someone else $1 more 

just to keep those employees in position.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I don’t think 6% is bad.  There are costs associated with employees above 

their salaries; there is workers comp and the cost of benefits. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated what Shannon is talking about is the burden so each employee the 

salary is $50,000 and the burden is going to be between 22% to 26% on top of that $50,000 that 

GMS pays but they expect to recoup from the district for that position and if you think about 25% 

burden that puts it right at $63,000 which is pretty close to where GMS has been a year ago based 

on those numbers.   

 Ms. Cormier stated I get what you are saying.  Freddie does not get paid $63,000 he gets 

paid less than that and the fee for Riverside what it costs to employ him is added on top of that.  

We get that we don’t want any homeowner in here to think that we are paying that bill for your 

employment because you get way less than that and we pay for that.  When we are talking about 

GMS and RMS, GMS is different, these are RMS employees. 

 Mr. Soriano stated the hourly people, yes. 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

10 

 Ms. Cormier asked is the amenity manager, operation manager, pool service are all those 

RMS employees? 

 Mr. Soriano stated I am your operations manager. 

 Ms. Cormier stated you are GMS. 

 Mr. Soriano stated it doesn’t matter, they are the same.  You are paying RMS, I stopped 

that for going out to bid because I know the property very well rather than hiring someone else to 

come in.   

 Mr. Rhein asked can we get it at 5%? 

 Mr. Soriano stated if that is board direction and the board said we don’t want to sign, I 

would be happy to go to my boss.  There are partners involved in that and they still have to pay 

their money but I will bring that to them if that is board direction. 

 Ms. Cormier asked we are going to get the scope of work.  Does that include the job 

descriptions for each employee?  When I requested that in 2020 the job descriptions were a 

paragraph compared to other companies that had very lengthy job descriptions of what is expected 

from an employee.  Can we review the job descriptions for each and every one of these positions? 

 Ms. Giles stated the scope of service was included in last year’s agreement and we can 

include that.   

 Mr. Rhein stated the inflation rate is 4.05%. 

 Ms. Giles asked is that the board’s guidance you want to see the scope of service, 4.05%? 

 This item tabled. 

 

B. Tree Amigos 

 Mr. Rhein stated the increase is the 2% or 3% they have always done but to me because of 

continuing service I didn’t see a scope.  We have a lot going on.  Does this include the new lake 

and ponds, new areas. 

 Mr. Soriano stated it does not.   

 Mr. Rhein stated I know Joe is coming back and wants more money and I want a scope for 

him too.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated I want to make sure I understand when you ask for a scope.  It has 

one and you just don’t like it?   



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

11 

 Mr. Rhein stated there is no scope here as to what needs to be cut, what needs to be 

trimmed. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I think part of the confusion is that Tree Amigos is treating it as a 

renewal so the prior scope would still apply.   

 Ms. Giles stated they don’t expire until October 31, 2025.   

 Ms. Jordan stated they wanted an increase last time and we told them no. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated this isn’t necessarily a brand-new agreement, they are just proposing 

a modification to your existing agreement to increase the price.   

 Mr. Rhein asked when does the current one expire? 

 Ms. Giles stated the current one expires October 31, 2023 with two annual renewals. 

 Ms. Jordan stated they can go up 3% each year. 

 Ms. Giles stated it shows through October 31, 2023 is the initial term with the option of 

two annual renewals that takes us to October 2025.   

 Ms. Cormier stated there are going to be increased areas they are going to have to maintain.  

What are they going to increase for that. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that one is definitely hard because they have to be able to see the 

common ground before they can give you a price.  They can’t say they will take care of a certain 

area for $500 more a month and it ends up being a huge amount of detail and you are not going to 

be able to get that from anybody.  Until that is done back there they won’t be able to add in an 

amount.  I don’t think you will see it this coming fiscal year but by the time we are planning next 

fiscal year that will happen.  This will have to change because they are going to have to ask for an 

increase so it would be an addendum.   

Ms. Giles stated when we get to 2025 what do you want to see? 

 Mr. Rhein stated my ultimate goal is a lot of shrubs around here look old, the junipers are 

getting frayed and dying.  I thought I saw in a previous contract that they would take out shrubs 

and stuff that is included in the contract.  Because I want to do some maintenance or some re-

landscaping with nicer stuff I want to make sure that is still in included in the contract and we 

don’t lose that, because that would probably be a hefty price. 

 Mr. Soriano stated when we come up on 2025 I can get you a scope that may have better 

detail.   

 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

12 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Rhein with all in favor 
Mr. Rhein was authorized to work with staff to review the scope of 
the agreement with Tree Amigos and to bring back any necessary 
changes at the next meeting. 

 

C. The Lake Doctors 

 Ms. Giles stated we asked for this from Lake Doctors anticipating eight more ponds coming 

online in the future.  We only pay for what we have so until those come online we won’t pay this 

additional fee.   

 Mr. Rhein asked can we get the pond sizes together and once we have that we need to add 

that to the scope of work. 

 Mr. Soriano stated I think we already had an increase to cover your current contract.  We 

asked for this to see the pricing for the new ponds, but I think that may be a couple years out. 

 Mr. Rhein stated it was going to go in for the fish.   

 Ms. Giles stated we did budget for these additional ponds in 2024.  If the ponds come 

online in 2024 we have the money set aside.  I don’t think we need a motion it was just a discussion 

and we will keep things the way they are right now with Lake Doctors.  As the ponds come online 

we have the flexibility in the budget to cover that. 

 Mr. Rhein stated we need a scope on this as well. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2023-05 
Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2024 and Setting a Public Hearing Date 
to Adopt 

 Ms. Giles stated Resolution 2023-05 approves the proposed budget for fiscal year 2024 

and sets the public hearing date for August 15, 2023.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated because you are not increasing the assessments there will not be a 

mailed notice to the residents.  The resolution directs staff to publish notice of the public hearing 

and transmit the budget to Clay County.   

 Ms. Giles stated the budget has three funds we deal with, the general fund, which is the 

operating and maintenance, debt service fund which covers the 2015, 2020 and 2022 bonds and 

the capital reserve fund that is money set aside for repairs and replacement of the capital assets 

and we have a capital reserve study that we use as a guide to help us with this budget.  We had a 

budget workshop at the last meeting and I recommend doing that going forward.  There is no 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

13 

increase in this budget, the assessments stay the same.  On page 77 is the side-by-side comparison 

that shows they are the same for 761 platted lots 2023, 2024, the gross assessment is $1,269.90. 

 The board discussed the following: Printing and binding, landscaping, security, capital 

reserve, pool repair, chemical vendor, permit increase, projected for pool attendants, gate monitor.  

 

Mr. Rhein moved to increase the gate monitor from $10,000 to 
$17,000 and Ms. Jordan seconded the motion. 

 

 Ms. Cormier stated when I worked here as a resident who lived here and worked in that 

position, I was hired to just monitor the gate so we could have an adult present to be able to stop 

the chaos that was happening, yelling at the lifeguards and all that in 2019, you have to be able to 

have that look that you can look through and you have the registrations if that needs to be updated 

so that when people come in there and say yes, these are the ones that live here, these are the 

guests, that all needs to be out there for that person sitting there because that is what I would do is 

look to make sure and our residents did not like anybody telling them what they could or couldn’t 

do.  It was very stressful for a homeowner to be in that position.  I concur when you live here and 

doing the same thing our lifeguards have gone through when they live here and being yelled at and 

cussed at by our residents, it is horrible because you have a parent who is upset so we have to be 

mindful of that one but definitely update whatever we have to do to make sure that is up to date 

even if it is, people filling out new ones and making sure that we have that.  I also have a question 

on us not getting, the board or Freddie not getting notified when we have new people move in and 

people move out.  The HOA gets an estoppel for every sale that happens with the new people.  Is 

there any way that Freddie can get that information from Solaris, to where he is getting a copy of 

those estoppels so he knows when people are moving in and out? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we can request.  We can’t require them to do that. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I don’t know what kind of information is on that paperwork because 

once it is provided to the district, it is a public record.   

 Mr. Rhein stated you can go to the property appraiser’s website. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated that is the argument if you can just go to the property appraiser and 

look to see all the sales in 2023, what value is this offering and what do you use it for. 

 Ms. Cormier stated so that Freddie knows because right now he doesn’t know when 

somebody at this address moves out of here and their key card needs to be deactivated and they 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

14 

moved to Silver Creek but still have cards and they still come in here and nobody really knows 

unless you know this neighbor moved out.  When new people move in he knows their names and 

stuff and the address.  Send this person a letter or something to be able to notify that new 

homeowner they need to come in here because not all realtors tell them, go to the front, go talk to 

them.  You will start seeing it on Facebook, how do I get a key.  The HOA has that estoppel with 

the new information on those people when they move in.   

 Mr. Soriano stated if they are willing to work with us, but we can’t require that.  When 

people rent they don’t tell us their tenants left.   

 Ms. Jordan stated one of the things we ought to look at in the future is better pool 

monitoring system.  We have talked in the past about cards with photos on them. 

 The board discussed new systems, fobs, wrist bands, photo cards, printers and computers. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
Resolution 2023-05 approving the proposed fiscal year 2024 budget 
with changes as discussed on record and setting the public hearing 
for August 15, 2023 was approved.   

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Renewal of Pool Use 
Agreement with Clay High School Swim 
Team 

 Ms. Giles stated we started circulating the agreement with them, we don’t have it back yet. 

 Mr. Oca stated they are going to go for a couple more weeks doing training and then meets 

and practices the same as every year. The fee is $800. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Rhein with all in favor 
the pool use agreement with Clay High School was renewed. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Motion to Set a Public Hearing Date for 
Adoption Regarding Revised Suspension and 
Termination of Access Rule 

 Ms. Buchanan stated because this relates to suspension or termination of amenity rights it 

is our recommendation that you adopt this at a hearing.  Our goal is to go through the policy and 

find out whether the board is comfortable pursuing it in a general sense, it doesn’t have to be 

perfect tonight because you are not actually adopting it, so you have the ability to continue to 

review it and make any modifications at the August meeting. 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

15 

 She then reviewed the proposed suspension and termination rules and discussed the 

following: inappropriate pool attire, payment for damages, uniformity of suspensions, rework 

language on initial suspension, appeal process, tweak current policy, electronic incident reports, 

number of guests, must be 18 to bring a guest.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Ms. Cormier with all in 
favor the public hearing to consider revised suspension and 
termination of access rule was set for August 15, 2023. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

 A. Attorney 

 Ms. Buchanan stated the legislature adopted a law, which the governor has signed that 

requires special district board members to undertake four hours of ethics training on an annual 

basis.  There are some free resources online from the Commission on Ethics.  This requirement 

starts January 1, 2024.  Our office will give you more information in the upcoming months to make 

sure you have more direction.  The goal is to make it as convenient as possible.   

 

 B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (808) 

 Ms. Giles stated in the agenda package is a copy of the letter from the supervisor of 

elections indicating that there are 808 registered voters residing within the district. 

 I have an email from a supervisor who asked for a forensic audit.  I wasn’t able to get a 

proposal for that.  I need a little more guidance from the board.  A forensic audit by definition 

examines and evaluates the firm’s financial records to derive evidence used in a court of law or a 

legal proceeding specifically looking for some type of fraud or embezzlement.  I need more 

guidance from the board.  I can get with the accountant and she can pull a report out of the system 

that shows every transaction paid against any one of your budget lines, then pull every invoice to 

support each of those transactions.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I don’t think we need a forensic audit.  Every dime we spend is at the 

end of every financials, at the end of the year we have a third-party company to audit our money 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

16 

then it goes to the State of Florida for validation.  I’m not sure what would be looked for.  I don’t 

support that request.  I think it would be a misuse of our funds. 

 Ms. Giles stated I can pull transaction reports from the system where we pay out each 

invoice.  I just need some more guidance from the board. 

 Ms. Cormier asked is there a different type of audit that identifies, because what I was 

asking about when it comes to contractors, sub-contractors, the employees, the hourly people that 

is going on but to where we can see where that $40,000 in to two different line items, how that 

money is spent and what it is spent on?   

 Ms. Giles stated that $40,000 is the budget amount, we don’t always hit that, but what I 

can pull from the system is a transaction report very similar to your check register that you see.  

What I’m going to pull is the same documents that you have already approved at the meetings with 

the check register.  All the financials are in the agenda packages on the website, but I can pull a 

report for each year that shows these are the transactions and then I can have her pull all the 

invoices. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I know you can do that but it is budget season, I’m going to stand firm 

and say I don’t think it is needed.  Every single thing we spend is public record, it is out there it is 

available.  You can view it.  It is a waste of our time and resources to have you guys chasing ghosts.  

It is available to you if you want to do the work, do the work.  Asking our district staff to spend 

more time, more hours, more community funds on whatever goose chase you are after is a waste 

of resources.   

 Ms. Giles stated if there is something specific that I can hone in on, I feel that would be 

part of the guidance.   

 Ms. Jordan stated if there is something specific then fine.  As long as it is not going to cost 

the district any money. 

 Ms. Giles stated I wasn’t able to get a proposal because I wasn’t able to tell her what to 

target.  She was able to send me a transaction report.  But I don’t know if this is what the board is 

looking for.   

 Ms. Cormier stated when I made the request I was trying to understand how much of it is 

RMS employees, how much of the money goes to sub-contractors because some of the work and 

some of the stuff.  Like when the palm fronds were done, I don’t know if that was an RMS 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

17 

employee or if that was the landscape company doing it, was it a sub-contractor?  I’m just saying 

in general I just threw one out there because that was something that was done. 

 Mr. Soriano stated no matter how it is done whether it is a sub-contract, it is not paid 

through RMS so it is always going to be paid to those other people.  Let’s say we hire your neighbor 

to do some painting because the RMS guys are doing something on the boardwalk, so we hire that 

guy.  The district is going to pay him directly, you don’t ever go through RMS and generate another 

invoice to pay that guy.  Right now all your sub-contracts you see in that agenda package every 

month.  There is nothing in there that goes through us like a roundabout.   

 Ms. Cornier stated okay so then when this work is, let’s say the pressure washing for 

example, you used RMS employees to do the pressure washing.  I would like to know how much 

we spent on pressure washing yearly to know if we need to hire an outside company to come in at 

that price and be able to do the pressure washing so that they could actually come in there do what 

needs to be done and different stuff, so when I’m asking for a copy for that information that is 

what I’m trying to figure out. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is more specific so we can look.  If you say I want to see pressure 

washing, we can go into that repair and replacement and pull everything out that was done through 

RMS pressure washing because it gets billed that way.   

 Ms. Cormier stated that is where I didn’t know if a forensic audit would to that or something 

would to and explain. 

 Mr. Soriano stated even going on that, that is not going to help you in that aspect.  If you 

want to look at the pressure washing, you have to decide how much pressure washing you want.  

If we tell you that these guys spent $8,000 of your money last year pressure washing you are not 

happy because you want more, you still have to decide and tell us to spend more.  

 Ms. Cormier stated or do a better job. 

 Ms. Jordan stated we hire a company to do something, you can decide to no longer work 

with that company or you can make a decision to work with that company under the prices they 

have given you.  That is the decision; do you want to work with them for the prices they are offering 

us or do you want to look for someone else.   

 Ms. Giles stated it sounds like you don’t want a forensic audit, you don’t want to pay for 

that but if you want a transaction report I can pull that and email that to you then go from there if 

there is a specific invoice you want to revisit, all of which are on the district website.  To make it 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

18 

simple I can pull the transaction report for a specific year and that may help a specific supervisor.  

Once you have that report you can see what month and year it was in and either you can go into 

the website or you can ask me to pull that.  If that helps, I need to know what to pull.  To pull every 

invoice for the last five years there would probably be a cost associated with that.  To pull a 

transaction report is easy enough I think that I can just ask for a transaction report for a specific 

fiscal year send that to you and we can go from there.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I won’t support any cost to the district. 

 Ms. Giles stated to pull a transaction report is not a cost, I can try to do that if that will help 

you look for something specific.  Just let me know which fiscal year you want; if you want all five 

that will take longer but I can do that. 

 

 D. Operations/Amenity Manager 

 1. Report 

 Mr. Oca reviewed the facilities report, copy of which was provided in the agenda package. 

 Mr. Soriano gave an overview of the operations and reported on issues with the playground 

equipment. 

 Ms. Giles stated the board authorized certain spending limits for continuing and non-

continuing emergencies. 

 

Ms. Jordan moved to authorize Mr. Rhein to work with staff to have 
the playground equipment platforms repaired/replaced in an amount 
not to exceed $10,000 Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 

 

 Ms. Cormier asked will it really cost that much for the platforms?   

 Mr. Soriano stated I’ve ordered online with different manufacturers and I have gotten some 

platforms at $2,000 some at $2,500 and they are shipped on freight so when you bring a semi in 

and they don’t ship anything for under $200 and you need two of them I’m looking at $400 top 

$500 shipping.  It won’t be anywhere near $10,000.  The only case it would be more expensive is 

if the manufacturer tells me I can’t get that platform, it is 16 years old, then I would pull out the 

last two posts so you would have to put in two new posts then you are adding a little more money.  

I still don’t think I will be near that.   

 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

19 

On voice vote the motion passed. 
 

 2. Monthly Quality Inspection Report 

  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

 Ms. Jordan stated the mailbox that is supposed to get rocks also needs a light.  Can we look 

at solar lighting? 

 Mr. Soriano stated I will look at a regular light first and maybe I can add it to one of your 

flat rate accounts.  You can do a solar light but they tend to be more expensive upfront, but you 

won’t have a recurring expense.  I keep trying not to talk about the rocks. 

 Ms. Jordan asked Marilee to send an email to the other developers and ask that they put 

lights on their communal mailboxes.   

 Ms. Giles stated I will do that. 

 Ms. Jordan stated the party planning committee has a couple requests to do different things.  

One is to do a festival type gathering where people set up booths and sell things and maybe get 

some food trucks.  In order for the party planning committee to do anything like that we need to 

find out if we can charge for booths. 

 Mr. Soriano stated you can charge, we have done that before. 

 Ms. Jordan stated that would need to be separate from CDD or does it go through the CDD.   

 Mr. Soriano stated since they are doing this as their own entity, basically we are just giving 

them use of the facility. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I don’t think we are renting that space to them. 

 Ms. Jordan asked are we required to have insurance? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we do ask for a COI from food trucks and additional insured. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated for food trucks there is a license agreement that our firm uses that is 

standard.  I can send it to you.  On some level the CDD has to know when these things are 

happening.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we will coordinate these events with Freddie.  The party planning 

committee has the second Friday and Saturday of the month to plan events.  We also want to have 

a tennis match.   



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

20 

 Mr. Soriano stated as long as we are covered safety-wise we are okay with it. 

 Ms. Cormier stated the National Night Out or one of the events they only allowed 

neighborhood vendors to set up a booth.  They didn’t allow outside people to come in because they 

wanted the people in the community to spotlight their business.  On that evening, National Night 

Out, are we able to open that up?  There are a lot of networking people. 

 Mr. Soriano stated since we are not doing it as a CDD, we are giving them space then you 

would work with them and do what they feel is comfortable. 

 Ms. Cormier asked are you trying to raise money for something on the event? 

 Ms. Jordan stated anything we spend we pay for.  If we do anything where fees would be 

raised it would go back into a pot to alleviate some of the expenditures from residents. 

 Can other board members participate in the party planning events?  Jeff has great ideas for 

this community. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated realistically there is no way you and Jeff are going to be in a room 

talking about using CDD facilities without veering off into policies or budget or other items. 

 Ms. Giles stated perception is reality and you would give that perception. 

 Ms. Jordan asked what if he worked with another member of the committee? 

 Mr. Rhein stated it’s okay, I have three children and I don’t go out much. 

 Ms. Giles stated my goal is protect you sometimes from yourselves.  If you do that you are 

opening the door. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated my recommendation is no, but you don’t have to take my advice. 

 Ms. Cormier stated I have been working with Freddie and Jay to identify the five parks that 

are here and look at having two different items at each park so that it would be identified as a park 

and have Jay give us a future development idea of what it would look like if the parks were 

developed all the way so we could have an idea of first year priority, and phases moving forward.  

Is that a direction we would go in as a whole so we can first preserve the integrity of the parks, 

then go from there? 

 Mr. Soriano stated the map there is what I’m starting with.  I have a more detailed map, 

but I wanted to print off a copy for you.  There are actually seven common areas that have enough 

space to have benches, bike rack, green space.  There are a couple that are big enough to have 

playground equipment.  Those seven are the first common areas I have looked at, there are three 

that are more pond roadside, many of your ponds have wide banks that are flat and have a bump-



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

21 

out.  We will start with benches and down the road add tables and then the ones that can 

accommodate playground structures.  This is not something that will be done in one year. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I did get an email from Commissioner Burke regarding speed limit signs 

and the public works should be working on replacing all those and if nothing happens in the next 

three weeks let me know and I will follow-up.   

 Mr. Rhein asked Jay in your professional career have you ever had a playground lease 

where you pay monthly for a new playground?  At the amenity center. 

 Mr. Soriano stated my experience is unless you are outrageously strapped you won’t see 

anything in the next year or two where you get to be in a better spot.  You are going to spend more 

in the long run.  You are getting into a better position.  I would wait then be ready to purchase new 

when you have funds. 

 Ms. Cormier stated when we did a walk through and had issues with the pool and the stuff 

the sub-contractor did, I asked Marilee if they had been fully paid yet.  Have they been? 

 Mr. Soriano stated I don’t believe so. 

 Ms. Cormier asked are they going to come back and remove the stuff they left on the areas 

and are they going to do any of the clean-up from the messiness of the job? 

 Mr. Soriano stated they came out and did grates, because the health inspector will ask about 

that.  You are talking about on the deck.  On the deck side I don’t know if they plan to come back, 

I will ask.  I’m more worried about the grates because I need that cleaned on the gutter side for the 

health inspector to be happy.   

 Ms. Cormier stated you did say if we use that pool company they would use different 

people to redo the entire pool. 

 Mr. Soriano stated yes.  This is their laborers, not when they do marcite.  The crew that 

came out and did the sprayground that was the marcite crew, that is a different company.   

 Ms. Cormier stated when we were talking about the parks and different areas, I will ask 

again if you will talk to Waltham if there is any responsibility they have.  I was asking Katie if 

there was stuff that had been recorded that was supposed to be done that hasn’t been done.  That 

is still up in the air.  Jay, when we spoke it is hard to get the developers to do, they give you a lot 

of business, this that the other, is there anywhere you can get with them? 

 Ms. Giles stated Shannon and I worked together in October of last year, sent that letter to 

Garden Street.  He didn’t say no, he hasn’t said yes yet and you just heard that they are now 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

22 

developer funding the rest of that project.  I don’t know if it is a hard no from them now that they 

are paying out of their own pocket, but we don’t have a hard no from Garden Street.  I will send a 

letter to Waltham like we did with Garden Street.   

 Ms. Cormier stated if there is any recourse we can take back to Waltham and try our 

hardest.  We don’t have the money to spend on benches and different things.  If there is any 

responsibility he still has as a developer, any development, any contribution, I ask that you ask 

them. 

 Ms. Giles asked do you think there is?  Is that why you are bringing that up? 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is a problem too.  You said recourse.  I wouldn’t use that because 

there are certain requirements and if there is not a requirement to finish out and give us a 

playground then there is not a requirement.  Some of those plans were conceptual and we get that 

a lot but if there is not a requirement there is nothing we can do and once they are out that is 

definitely hard to do. 

 Ms. Cormier stated he is not totally out.   

 Mr. Rhein stated the incident this weekend the back gate lock was locked in the morning 

but unlocked later in the afternoon.  We may have a key that is out there?  The gate by the 

restrooms. 

 Mr. Soriano stated if I find that there are keys out there for anything we will start changing 

keys.  Years ago they used to hand out keys to get into this building.  That is one of the first things 

I did when we took over, we changed all the locks.  If there is a key out there we will take care of 

it. 

 Mr. Oca stated I will look. 

 Mr. Rhein stated we may have a problem with alcohol at the pool here, most of the incidents 

people have coolers full of drinks.  There may be a policy, but they are not paying attention. 

 Ms. Cormier asked does our insurance cover alcohol? 

 Ms. Jordan stated it is swim at your own risk but as to the pool deck there are laws that you 

can’t have it so close, but we can remove it from any of the rental spaces that have access to the 

pool deck for safety. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that was an old East West thing.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we just add that there is no alcohol at the amenity center area adjacent to 

the pool.   



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

23 

 Ms. Buchanan asked you want that effective immediately? 

 Ms. Jordan responded yes. 

 

Mr. Jordan moved to amend the amenity center policies such that no 
alcohol will be permitted at the entire amenity other than this room, 
to be effective July 1, Mr. Rhein seconded the motion. 

 

 Ms. Cormier asked does our insurance allow alcohol? 

 Ms. Giles stated I can’t answer that right now.  I can send you the current insurance policy.   

 Ms. Jordan stated that is not going to be on your policy unless you ask for that. 

 Mr. Rhein stated this is a family friendly pool. 

 Ms. Giles stated since we introduced a new item on the agenda we will open the floor for 

public comments. 

 A resident stated this is not the course I thought this was going to go.  My husband and I 

are probably one of the members of this community that are at the pool the most and I teach in the 

community so I know 90% of the children here.  There is a resident we have seen who have had 

issues with alcohol or abusing that privilege and got all rambunctious or whatever.  In the five 

years of being here a lot of the issues are caused by a guest of a resident or is from a big party that 

has rented the facilities and they brought coolers because they plan to be here all day.  So, they 

may have a 2-hour rental then they just spread out and move to the tables and stay all day.  If you 

are here all day just as you at the beach and you are drinking all day, there are going to be issues.  

I’m not saying that doesn’t need to be addressed but for a few specific people if we can hold some 

guests or some residents more accountable for their behavior and terminate their guest privileges.  

I don’t know of anyone who has ever gotten their cards terminated.  It is a policy we have never 

used.  Before you X every guest from coming up here to have a beverage, enforce the policy.  I 

am a teacher and love to come up here and have a margarita and read a book and you are going to 

tell me I can’t do it because some jerks were loud and obnoxious?  I find that harsh. 

 Ms. Jordan stated maybe we go with our rules with the option to suspend, we encourage 

suspension for inappropriate behavior and see how the summer goes.  If it becomes a problem we 

bring back the no alcohol policy. 

 Ms. Giles stated just to clarify you can’t have alcohol in the pool. 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

24 

 The resident stated a lot of people follow the rules and this is like making a rule for 

everyone for the two or three obnoxious, loud, drunken families that have never had their privileges 

revoked.  There are other rules in place that can be enforced and hold them more accountable and 

if it becomes a more regular issue then that is something to look into.   

 A resident asked is it an issue?  I just moved here and it didn’t seem like an issue.  Is it a 

problem?   

 Ms. Jordan stated I don’t know that drinking is a big issue.  We have had multiple years of 

problems at the pool with residents being rude and disrespectful.  I agree maybe that is going too 

far.  We could probably keep the rules as they are and start suspending people. 

 A resident stated you can make a million rules but without someone to be there to enforce 

the rules all day nothing is going to come of it.  I have run into incidents when staff isn’t here.  It 

is hard as residents to police the pool and I don’t wish that on anyone.   

 Mr. Oca stated Lane has done a good job the last couple of weeks. 

 A resident stated if you say there is no alcohol and people are drinking down there, how 

much time are you going to spend chasing them around. 

 Ms. Giles stated I think the motion died.  Freddie will monitor that. 

 Mr. Rhein stated there is a GMS invoice 5777 from Crown Trophy dated 5/15 for $92.  I 

don’t know where that is going. 

 Mr. Oca stated I think that was for Nate’s plaque. 

 Mr. Rhein stated the pool project, can we get a breakdown of the labor and supplies. 

 Mr. Soriano stated you are going to see the cost of supplies by breakdown.   

 Mr. Rhein stated I don’t see the credit card purchase. 

 Mr. Soriano stated it is the same for reimbursement, you will see the cost on there then 

they process the reimbursement. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I wanted to see who was doing the job. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is Joe and that probably won’t be on there until the next agenda 

packet because that was just done. 

 Mr. Rhein stated it is kind of weird having an invoice and waiting. 

 Mr. Soriano stated most of the invoices in here are from April, you are a couple months 

behind.  He just did that work last week. 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

25 

 Mr. Rhein stated I would like more details on those invoices.  Can we move meetings to 

the third week, by the second week of the month and beyond that I want more time to look through 

the packet.  We talked before that if we moved it up or got the packet earlier that would encroach 

on your financials because they have to do it in enough time, but if we pushed the meetings back, 

that would still give them the same amount of time to complete it. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I can’t accommodate the third week for the rest of the year.   

 Mr. Rhein asked can we have all the contract period performance dates start on the month 

that there is no CDD meeting so that way we can have a chance to talk about it beforehand and do 

something beforehand.  If we have a meeting in August then October we fall under what we have 

contracts due that same month.  The period of performance we have now, I don’t see all the period 

of performance and when they start from the beginning. 

 Ms. Jordan stated keep in mind the members of the board will always rotate so every four 

years you are going to have a period of time where you have six month people don’t know what 

they are doing.  You are going to have people come on board who don’t understand everything 

and there is going to be a learning curve to it. Whatever month you are deciding to put those 

contracts in, I would keep it about six months out of the election period.   

 Ms. Giles stated what staff tries to do is when we approve a proposed budget we take into 

account increase for any of the agreements we have and we currently have a couple agreements 

that don’t line up with the fiscal year and we are trying to get those adjusted so that they all start 

October 1 and end September 30.  Is that what you are talking about? 

 Mr. Rhein stated yes.  As long as there is enough time for the session to plan. 

 Ms. Giles stated the discussion will be before those contracts expire.  A lot of them are 

scheduled to expire this September and we knew that more lakes could come online in 2024 so 

that is why we have that one.  RMS expires September 30 and to go along with what we see in the 

budget.  We do have a couple that are off cycle, I don’t know how they got that way but they are.  

We are trying to get them all aligned with the fiscal year.  We will typically bring the ones that 

expire to you during budget season.  A lot of contractors will not even engage in a conversation 

with us until the summer because they don’t necessarily work on a fiscal year.  When we start to 

ask them in March for their FY 24 proposals it is only three months into the calendar year but we 

are six months into the fiscal year.  That means you will see it at the budget workshop then your 

budget approval and everything is locked in at budget adoption.  Typically, you approve it then 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

26 

Katie prepares an agreement then that agreement comes back to you.  You have approved the 

contract, then the paperwork catches up to the agreement. 

 Mr. Rhein stated our facility manager had shorts that were frayed, it doesn’t look 

professional.  They need to look professional at the amenity center.   

 Mr. Oca stated I asked her not to wear such nice clothes because we mess with chlorine 

and all kinds of stuff.  I don’t know if they were too short. 

 Mr. Rhein stated they were frayed. 

 Mr. Soriano stated she is a manager but it is only a parttime role, we only had so much 

money.  We offered her hours to do other things so she does come out for other things.  She had 

done cleaning and done stuff for the pool.  We did tell her to be careful what she wears because 

one day she came in a dress and it’s nice but not something she should wear when doing these 

other jobs.  

 Mr. Rhein stated she is doing a great job.  Maybe if we had shirts. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we have name tags. 

 Mr. Rhein stated a resident suggested bright lights in the amenity center, not yellow.  Who 

can residents ask for future purchases for the houses coming up? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we usually don’t make recommendations. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I sent an email a while ago about a box out here.  Now it is duct taped. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we don’t touch those, that is AT&T. 

 Mr. Rhein stated the amenity building inspection.  This came up because of the new law 

about condominiums. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we do get different types of building inspections, but we don’t fall under 

any of that. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I want to make sure it is safe. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we also get an engineer’s report.  Every couple of years they come 

through and inspect facilities and give us a report. 

 Ms. Jordan stated we had an inspection done for the capital reserve study. 

 Mr. Rhein asked do they inspect foundations?  We are not on solid land, it’s Florida sand.  

Do we need something like that? 

 Ms. Cornier stated the sand up at the front as you come in on Rolling Hills Boulevard, all 

of that on the side of the road is continually washing into our drainage.   



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

27 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is the builders. 

 Ms. Cormier asked who is checking our drainage in there because when it fills up with 

sand that is not dissolving and is going to cause an issue. 

 Mr. Soriano stated it is not ours, when it is in the road the county will deal with that.  When 

I see slow drainage issues I give them a call but they don’t want us to cleaning those boxes. 

 Mr. Rhein asked what about the culvert? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we are going to have to drop some dirt there, it is our culvert. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 A resident stated you were talking about the pool inspection. Do you know when that will 

happen? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we don’t have a date; she will just show up and will show up multiple 

times in the summer if she wants.   

 A resident stated look into updating the card system to help prevent issues with guests.  

Also, the gate monitor should be an adult.  The lounge chairs need to be updated. 

 Mr. Oca stated they got restrapped three years ago. 

 A resident stated we need new chairs.  These are old and very uncomfortable. 

 Mr. Oca stated the new ones cost between $350 to $400 each.   

 Ms. Giles stated we  will bring back a proposal for chairs. 

 Mr. Miller left the meeting at 9:50 p.m. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

 A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 A copy of the balance sheet and income statement were included in the agenda package. 

 

 B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 A copy of the assessment receipt schedule was included in the agenda package. 

 

 C. Check Register 

 



June 13, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

28 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Rhein with all in favor 
the check registers were approved. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for August 15, 2023, 
2023 @ 6:00 p.m. at Rolling Hills Amenity 
Center 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is August 15, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at this location. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Ms. Cormier with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ROLLING HILLS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Tuesday, August 15, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. in the Rolling Hills Amenity 

Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Shannon Jordan Chairperson 
 John Miller Vice Chairman 
 Jeff Rhein Supervisor 
  
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Keith Hadden District Engineer by telephone 
 Joe Schofield Alliant Engineering by telephone 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Jay Soriano Operations Manager 
 Several Residents 
 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the August 15, 2023 meeting.   

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 Mr. Finney stated I am a new resident and I have been overwhelmed with negative news 

about the neighborhood.  The amenity center seems to be in poor shape and it seems like it could 

be proactively handled differently and there is a lack of caring and lack of maintenance.  It appears 

to be mismanaged or mis-planned.   

 Ms. Jordan gave an overview of the history of the district and the reason for the lack of 

available funds for repairs and upgrades. 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

 Mr. Miller stated there was not enough staffing but there are enough people in the 

community willing to help. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 

A. Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Unexpired Term of Office (11/2026) 

  

Ms. Jordan moved to appoint David Church to fill the unexpired term 
of office and Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 

 

 Mr. Rhein stated I think we get a lot more with Mr. Gibbons then gave an overview of his 

background.   

 

On voice vote with two in favor and Mr. Rhein opposed the motion 
passed. 

 

B. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 

 

C. Election of Officers, Resolution 2023-04 

  

 Items B and C were tabled. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Overview of the Bond Process 

 Ms. Buchanan gave an overview of the bond process, reviewed the past issuances, the 

default, refinancing of portions of the 2006A Bonds into four series of bonds that have been 

refunded again into the 2020 series, then the 2022s relate to the Adams Home section.  This is the 

debt the district owes to the bondholders and the district collects the debt service assessments to 

pay the principal and interest on those bonds.   

 Generally, at the first meeting the district determines what improvements it is going to be 

responsible for constructing and that is called the capital improvement plan that includes the 

stormwater management system, water, sewer, electric, roads, streetlights, landscaping, 

hardscaping, and amenities.  It is essentially all your core infrastructure.  The district’s engineer 

works with the developer and identified the master improvement plan, put it in a report and we 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

used that report to file a complaint with your circuit court to have the court validate the bonds.  

That means the district has the authority to issue bonds, the purpose of the bonds is valid and the 

process for the bond issuance is valid.  Once we have the validation the district issues a master 

assessment lien and that is where we identify that we are able to lien all the developable property 

within the district with assessments necessary to pay for the bonds.  The one thing I will note is 

that we never issued the total master lien.  The master lien is generally the cost of the total 

improvement plan, which is generally tens of millions of dollars more than what the market can 

support, which means they wouldn’t be able to sell lots with the assessment high enough to support 

the original umbrella master lien.  Instead, the developer looks at the target assessment range it 

wants and multiplies that out by the number of platted units it is going to have in each assessment 

area and that is how the district determines the amount of bonds that are issued in any series.  If 

the bonds are not enough to finish the project the developer has an agreement with the district to 

complete the project out of its own pocket.  The conditions of the bonds including the interest rate, 

terms, refinancing provisions, all of those are incorporated into the supplemental assessment 

methodology, which also identifies the reduced assessment rate that is actually assessed on the 

property.  That is an overview of the start to finish and overview of bonds.   

 Mr. Rhein asked which bonds have been paid in full? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated none of them have been paid back in full, they are 30-year bonds.  I 

don’t think any of them extended past the initial term, so you are looking at 2037 for the expiration 

for the earlier ones and the ones that were issued in 2022 are going to be a much later date.  If you 

have a question about the bonds on your specific lot, Marilee’s office has information and she can 

give you an estoppel and pay down information.   

 Mr. Rhein stated I imagined an in-depth discussion of our agenda, our bonds and someone 

to walk us through the steps and process.  How we issue and where we are now.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated help me understand because this is how we issue.   

 Mr. Rhein stated let’s move on, thank you for your time.   

 Ms. Buchanan provided the website has the offering statements that is a summary of all the 

transactions, the work that is going to be done, the financials of the district and the summary of 

the development and the developers.  It is essentially a proforma and prospectus that they give to 

tentative bond holders.  It is very detailed in the information that it has and that is the document 

that bondholders use to decide whether or not they want to invest in the district’s bonds.   



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

4 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the April 11, 2023 
& June 13, 2023 Meetings 

 

Ms. Jordan moved to approve the April 11th and June 13th meeting 
minutes and Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 

 

 Mr. Rhein stated the minutes of the April meeting are not ready to be approved because 

there needs to be some additions.  Supervisor Cormier requested and there was about three 

paragraphs in total between the conversation of Shannon and Ms. Cornier.  I’m not sure why they 

were left out to begin with. 

 Ms. Jordan asked what conversation are you referring to? 

 Ms. Giles stated it is on page 18.  Florida Statutes requires that we take minutes, not that 

they are verbatim.  A lot of times the transcriptionist just gives an overview of the minutes.  When 

a supervisor wants something specific to be revisited, we replay the recording and add it in.  I don’t 

know what difference this conversation made.  You see that on page 18 where it starts with, we 

can agree to disagree, the developer could have continued to contribute to the community.  The 

supervisor asked that her statements be added in there. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I think what was gained from the revision was that Helana believed the 

developer could contribute to the community and maintain and sustain the pocket parks.  I want to 

state on record that due to the fact that there were some comments not recorded, the first time the 

reason the business practice concern by the management company in regarding the public meeting 

minutes supervisors are not being recorded in an accurate manner.  I don’t know why they get to 

pick and choose.   

 Ms. Jordan asked what was not recorded?  What do you want recorded that was not? 

 Mr. Rhein stated it is on page 18. 

 Ms. Giles stated it is not a requirement to be verbatim with Florida Statute, a lot of times 

when pens are clicking very loudly and feet are shuffling and papers are being stacked and people 

are coughing and sneezing and scooting around in their chairs it is very difficult to hear the 

recordings.  I can ask the transcriptionist why she didn’t put that in the first time, if she had a 

difficult time understanding what was being recorded.  I can come back and let you know why it 

wasn’t there the first time, but it is not a requirement that it be verbatim; just that minutes be taken.  



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

5 

I have some districts that their minutes are simply two pages long, whatever the agenda item is it 

says it and then the motion, it is very brief.  Any time a supervisor asks that a recording be revisited 

and a specific comment be added they add it for you.   

 Mr. Rhein stated I hear you but when it changes the narrative of the agenda and the minutes 

recorded it is important that they are all recorded properly. 

 Ms. Jordan asked what was changed? 

 Mr. Rhein stated you would not know that Helana believed the developer should contribute 

to the community to maintain and sustain pocket parks. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I disagree with you.  I think the public is well aware that Helana thinks 

the developer should contribute more and has said it numerous times in the meetings.  I don’t know 

that that changes the entirety of the conversation we had.  It is such a minuscule conversation.  

That is the first thing, the developer should contribute more money but it has nothing to do with 

us in the grand scheme of things or what we are doing in the CDD and the business we are trying 

to accomplish with the funds we do have.  I’m fine with the meeting notes.  I think they express 

all the issues that were on the agenda and the conversations we had.  There was a lot at that meeting 

that we don’t put in these minute notes and I don’t care because it doesn’t add to the issues that 

we address as a CDD board. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I would like to also move that the June comments do not include my 

comments that were recorded when I stated I believe the residents are paying for this on the bond 

on page 32 in regard to the contract modification of over $500,000.   

 Ms. Giles asked is that PDF page 32? 

 Mr. Rhein stated yes.   

 Ms. Giles stated let’s take one set of minutes at a time.  For the April 11th minutes is there 

a motion to approve? 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the April 11, 2023 minutes were approved as presented. 

 

 Ms. Giles asked on the June 13th minutes, I can ask the transcriptionist to replay that.  After 

the meeting just point me in the direction where it is missing so we can hone in on that part of the 

recording and we can approve this in substantial form or we can table the June minutes until the 

corrections are made. 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

6 

 Mr. Rhein stated there was also talk about ponds and the sizes and I believe that to be 

important for historical record so the future board members know that we have ponds the size of 

3 acres that was not included in the minutes either.  On page 52 there is a sentence with the phrase, 

invoice and waiting, and it should be invoice in waiting. 

 Ms. Giles stated if you can send me those corrections, I will have them added.  We will 

table the June 13, 2023 meeting minutes. 

 

Ms. Jordan moved to approve the June 13, 2023 meeting minutes in 
substantial form and there being no second the motion died for lack 
of a second. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 

A. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 

 Mr. Hadden updated the board on the number of lot closings, the water and reuse meter 

installation, and paving the third cul-de-sac and stated everything should be done by the end of 

August. 

 In response to Shannon’s request on the park the developer has agreed to transfer that to 

the CDD and contribute up to $6,000 to build whatever the CDD wants such as a bench or picnic 

table.   

 Ms. Jordan stated extend them our gratitude and Marilee can send out a letter and we can 

put the money aside to give it to Helana to do something with that park.   

 Ms. Giles steed it sounds like it is going to be a couple of months because that tract has to 

be conveyed to the district.   

 

B. Ratification of Requisitions 97-100 

 

Ms. Jordan moved to ratify requisitions 97-100 and Mr. Miller 
seconded the motion. 

 

 Mr. Rhein asked on page 62 there is builder line items, one called sale prep.  What is that 

and why is it included on the invoice? Because that is coming out of the bonds? 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

7 

 Ms. Jordan stated we are out of bond funds; this is being paid by the developer.  That is 

site prep. 

 Mr. Rhein stated if it is site prep and not sale prep, I apologize. 

 Mr. Hadden stated that is site prep.  

 Mr. Rhein asked is all this paid by the developer now and not from the bonds? 

 Mr. Hadden stated that is correct. 

 Mr. Rhein asked we ratify this because it is our CDD? 

 Ms. Jordan stated it is still our job to make sure the entire contract is done, even though we 

are not responsible for these funds.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated we are responsible for these bills because it is a contract between 

Vallencourt and the CDD, but we no longer have funds to pay these bills and the developer has an 

obligation to pay them under their completion obligation, which we talked about earlier.  When 

the project is more expensive than the bond proceeds, the developer is obligated to pay the 

difference.   

 

On voice vote with all in favor the motion passed. 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2022 Project 

A. Update Regarding Series 2022 Project 

 Mr. Schofield stated the construction is about 98% complete on the 247 lots to the south, 

some of the home pads are being poured.  The only remaining item is to install the common area 

buffer landscape plan and that is occurring this week.  We are scheduling final inspection with the 

county; all the utilities have been installed and approved and certified and accepted by Clay Utility.  

Just working the final punch list and final inspection and working to get this closed out.   

 

B. Ratification of Requisitions 96-102 

  

Ms. Jordan moved to ratify requisitions 96-102 and Mr. Miller 
seconded the motion. 

 

 Mr. Rhein asked can we get a breakout of what the bond paid for and what the developer 

is now paying for? 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

8 

 Ms. Giles stated I maintain a spreadsheet that shows when it got paid, who got paid, how 

it got paid and if it was paid on a funding request.  I will get with the accountant to see which 

tracker better suits what you are looking for.  Would the whole board want to see that or do you 

just want me to send it to you? 

 Ms. Jordan stated I would be interested in seeing it. 

 

On voice vote with all in favor the motion passed. 
 

C. Ratification of Change Orders 001-006, 008 

 Ms. Giles stated this is for change orders 001 – 008 from Pipeline.  At the last meeting in 

your packet it included change orders 003-008, it didn’t have 001 and 002 and we tabled it so you 

could see all the change orders in the order they have been presented. 

 

Ms. Jordan moved to ratify change orders 001-008 and Mr. Miller 
seconded the motion. 

 

 Mr. Rhein asked when we are ratifying these we are just ratifying these because it is our 

duty and because the developer gets 6% in sales tax to use the CDD?  District sales tax? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated again, the district has the contract with Pipeline so it is our contract 

and what these modifications are, are changes that had to be made based on field conditions or 

other site work conditions or engineering factors that required changes to the existing contract and 

pricing.  In that sense what we are doing is cleaning up our contract documents so when we have 

our audit they can review this contract and tie it out to the pay applications.   

 Mr. Rhein asked what is the difference between let’s say modification 1 and 2 where we 

sign whereas the CDD in modification 3 where the developer signs for it?  Is that just the lay of 

the land, where the project is? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated my request is always that the CDD sign these because it is the CDD 

contract.  That is why we are bringing it back to make sure the CDD ratifies it.   

 Mr. Rhein stated I just want my fellow board members to ask the question when we are 

ratifying these modifications that we ask the question how does this benefit the residents.  It should 

benefit the residents.   



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

9 

 Ms. Jordan stated it benefits the future residents.  We have to make sure everything is done 

and we have to make sure everything is paid. 

 Mr. Rhein asked what is the mobilization fee?  Did we go over this last time? 

 Mr. Schofield stated mobilization is what the contractor has to truck in, their equipment 

and materials, physically mobilize people, equipment and materials to the project.  There is a real 

cost to them moving equipment around. 

 

On voice vote the motion passed. 
 

 The next item taken out of order. 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Proposals: 

A. Riverside Management Services 

 Ms. Giles stated at the last meeting the board asked staff to take the RMS proposal back.  

One of the comments was the current inflation rate was 4%.  I did some math and tallied that what 

RMS has presented is actually at 4.16% increase from 2023 to 2024.   

 Mr. Soriano stated it was actually Jeff and you were looking at a couple spots that were at 

6% and you wanted to negotiate down to 5% but you also asked us to increase some of those hourly 

people, that the board has talked about multiple times because we do need more staff, we do need 

more hourly help.  We did look at it and adjusted the portion for operations and I came down to 

about 3%, did not change the expected amenity manager because Freddie is the one here and that 

helps with things like giving him his annual increase.  This brought the whole thing down but we 

did increase the hourly the way you asked and that ends up keeping the budget flat.  Last time you 

had a certain amount in there for RMS because we increased those hours for the hourly staff and 

took down the operations, you still ended up washing your budget.  There is no change in the 

overall budget.  We do have to adjust the lines to match this if you feel comfortable accepting that 

decrease the way I set I set it up. 

 Mr. Rhein stated I thought we raised $7,000. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is a separate line.  I want to deal with the RMS proposal first because 

you asked to negotiate on that.  Later you also asked that we increase the facility assistant and it 

went from $11,000 to $17,000, but that wasn’t included in the original RMS proposal.  I just dealt 

with the negotiation on the RMS proposal and if you look at your budget line we still have that 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

10 

$17,000 in there.  That has been done so we can get the final number for the budget so you can see 

whether you had an increase in assessments or a decrease and you didn’t and we were able to get 

everything done that was requested.   

 Mr. Rhein stated so on the budget it is facility assistant/gate monitor, but the proposal is 

lifeguards and deck monitors.   

 Mr. Soriano stated yes that facility assistant is more the gate monitor too.  The gate 

monitors end up being your check-in person.   

 Mr. Rhein asked Ms. Jordan, didn’t we want to focus on the gate monitor too? 

 Ms. Jordan stated we do want a gate monitor.  I think this budget allows us to have the gate 

monitor Thursday through Sunday and it also gives us management staff over the weekend as well, 

right? 

  Mr. Soriano responded yes.  It is not like you have to use it towards the same person, the 

facility assistant or deck monitor.  Remember, those positions are billed hourly so this isn’t a 

contracted amount.  If you don’t use the deck monitor that goes back into the district’s budget and 

sits there and that is surplus for whatever you want to use.  If we think it is needed, which we do 

think the gate monitor is needed that is where the extra goes. 

 Ms. Jordan stated that is only during the summer. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is the plan, but this year we had issues as early as April and we 

didn’t have enough money last year to set it up like this.  If you want to start the gate monitor 

earlier that is where we would have put that charge. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I don’t think the gate monitor is the highest priority to invest more money 

into.  It is important but keep them during the season.  We didn’t have gate monitors last year or 

the year before.  This is a good step forward I don’t think we are done with the number of people 

we need on staff but our funds need to be pushed toward repairs instead of more staff. 

 Mr. Rhein asked in order to provide more resources to provide better care for the facility 

that was discussed previously are we going to consider adding a maintenance guy? 

 Ms. Jordan stated I wanted to discuss that idea with the residents.  How problematic is it to 

have residents assist in what you have?   

 Mr. Soriano stated it does create more work for Freddie and me and when there are 

volunteers there is no accountability and that still makes us the point of contention if something 

doesn’t get done because people said they would do it and they don’t show up.  There is also a 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

11 

liability issue, we can only have them doing certain things.  We do this a lot in some districts such 

as painting a room.  We can have volunteers and we set everything up and help out with that and 

that saves time because now we don’t have to pay the hourly people.  The volunteers can be used 

but we are limited as to how we use them.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we need to know what we can use volunteers for.  The budget can be 

adjusted on where the money is going, it just cannot be increased.  I’m okay without an additional 

maintenance guy this year. 

 Mr. Soriano stated I’m hoping to control the capital expenses this year because we had a 

big increase last year to build the reserve that was never planned before.  We will have enough to 

do your pool and hopefully, it will not be $300,000 plus we put aside.  This is an older 

neighborhood and a neighborhood that didn’t use enough resources or staff because they didn’t 

want to spend any extra money.  You need one dedicated fulltime maintenance guy to be able to 

do the things that we point out.  We increased your common area maintenance line and your repair 

and replacement line and that helps getting those hours.  That wasn’t an increase to get a fulltime 

person but that is something you need to look at for next year.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we should look at that for next year but go with what we have right now. 

 Mr. Rhein asked when you say next year. 

 Mr. Soriano stated your next fiscal year.  This budget is for fiscal year 2024 and starts 

October 1 and we didn’t put a fulltime person in here, but that is what I think you need to move 

towards.  We did an increase for hours and there is space in there when you look at common area 

maintenance and repair and replacement line, that is where a lot of those hours for the maintenance 

guy comes out of.  They might be here three hours this week and eight hours next week; they are 

not a fulltime 40-hour person. 

 Ms. Jordan stated our budget needs to be approved and done.  When we have these 

meetings in June and you want those increases we can get them in the budget, but when we come 

to this meeting we should have a grasp of what the budget is going to look like and not ask for 

more.  We have to adopt this budget by a certain date. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated by the 15th if you want to be able to collect your assessments on the 

tax roll, which is the best way to do it otherwise you are like an HOA sending out bills and 

expecting checks back.  You have to have this done and submitted to the county by September 

15th.   



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

12 

 Mr. Soriano stated if I could find a fulltime maintenance guy who is decent at $40,000 a 

year, people will say I can get a person cheaper.  I know the market and I could find somebody 

cheap but you are not going to get the greatest work.  You are still going to have to have another 

company that will cover liability, insurance and things like that so it is not $40,000 we have to be 

able to free up $50,000 to $60,000 in your budget.   

 Mr. Rhein stated we have a repair and maintenance line item for $40,000. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is not all hours; that covers supplies too.   

 Ms. Jordan stated that is where the pool pump and a/c came out of. 

 Ms. Giles asked is there anything else in the RMS proposal to go over? 

 Mr. Soriano responded it was just that change because of the request for negotiation; that 

is what we worked on. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the proposal from Riverside Management Services was approved. 

 

 The next item taken out of order. 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Matters 

A. Overview of Budget 

 Ms. Giles stated this budget has three funds, the general fund, which is the operating funds, 

the debt service funds for the 2015, 2020 and 2022 bonds and the capital reserve fund.  Throughout 

the budget you are going to see some lines that increase some lines that decrease but overall the 

budget stays flat, the same in 2024 as it was in 2023 with no increase to the residents.   

 

B. Public Hearings 

  

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the public hearings were opened. 

 

 A resident stated I didn’t review the budget.  How would I have looked at the budget? 

 Ms. Giles stated there are copies of the budget on the table, but by Florida Statutes seven 

days prior to the meeting the agenda is posted to the website, the agenda being the main page but 

we try to get the entire agenda on the website.   



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

13 

 Ms. Buchanan stated the proposed budget for next year is generally put on the website after 

it is approved in May.  It has been up there a couple of months. 

 Ms. Giles stated this board also had a workshop a couple months ago and every meeting is 

open to the public whether it is a workshop or regular meeting. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the public hearings were closed. 

 

 Ms. Giles stated this is an opportunity for the board to have discussion about Resolution 

2023-07 and Resolution 2023-08.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated by way of explanation this is your appropriations resolution, it 

essentially adopts the budget so based on the conversations we have had tonight or whether you 

have had any input from the public in any avenue you would be able to make changes and 

modifications to the budget understanding that you can reallocate between line items or reduce the 

budget but  you cannot increase the total budget.  Assuming you are comfortable with the budget 

that Marilee proposes this resolution actually adopts the budget and incorporates the total funds 

that are going to be allocated to each fund so the general fund is your operation and maintenance 

and there is a capital reserve fund and each of the debt series fund would have a budget as well, 

understanding that the debt service funds essentially are only two items, the collection of 

assessments in and the payment of the debt service out.  The appropriation resolution then further 

authorizes limited budget amendments allowing the district manager to make any line item 

movements as long as they are within the limitations of $15,000 or less or 15% of the original 

appropriations.  Anything other than that such as a major budget increase or a very large line item 

that is beyond the parameter would come back at the end of the year and Marilee will present a 

budget amendment so that your final budget matches your actual expenditures.   

 

C. Consideration of Resolution 2023-07 Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 

  

Ms. Jordan moved to approve Resolution 2023-07 and Mr. Miller 
seconded the motion. 

 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

14 

 Mr. Rhein stated we had 761 platted lots on the roll and our net assessment was $1,193.71.  

On here that total is $908,410.27, but I’m getting $908,413.31.  I’m missing like $2 and something.   

 Ms. Giles stated that could be the decimal point how far it is carried out. 

 Mr. Miller stated everything here is what we talked about in the workshop.  I don’t see any 

need to make changes at this time. 

 Ms. Jordan stated we are very happy we are not raising fees. 

 

On voice vote the motion passed. 
 

D. Consideration of Resolution 2023-08 Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2024 

 Ms. Buchanan stated Resolution 2023-08 is the resolution that levies the special 

assessment.  Every year the board levies the operation and maintenance special assessment.  In 

section 1 there is a benefit determination meaning that you understand that the services, the 

improvements the district provides are equal to or more than the special assessments levied on the 

property.  Section 2 actually imposes, creates the lien for the annual operation and maintenance 

assessment and section 3 identifies how the district is going to collect it.  In this district the bulk 

of your assessment are collected on the tax roll, however, there is a small portion of your budget 

that is still directly collected from the developer and this resolution identifies the collection 

schedule for that payment, it is 50% no later than December 1st, 25% no later than February 1st and 

25% no later than May 1st.  It incorporates the assessment roll that Marilee has and it is essentially 

a listing of all the plats and the assessment tied to the plat.  Every lot has its own line item and that 

is how Marilee’s office keeps up with who is required to pay what.  It does authorize Marilee’s 

office to make an amendment to the assessment roll in case there are modifications.   

 Mr. Rhein asked what is this changing? 

 Ms. Giles asked the resolution? 

 Mr. Rhein stated yes.  

 Ms. Giles stated it is just a requirement that it be accepted by resolution.   

 Mr. Rhein stated so, no changes, just information, part of the process. 

 Ms. Giles stated yes. 

 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

15 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
Resolution 2023-08 was approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing Regarding Revised 
Suspension and Termination of Access Rule, 
Resolution 2023-06 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we have talked about this before but I will rehash some of the 

highlights.  This provides the process and reasons that someone may be suspended or terminated 

from using the district’s amenity center facilities.  In section 4 there is a list of items that are 

infractions that you could be subject to suspension for, false information on application, failing to 

abide by the rental policies, permitting someone else to use your access card, inappropriate 

behavior or inappropriate attire, failing to pay amounts owed to the district, failing to follow the 

rules or policies, treating staff or representatives in an abusive manner, damaging district property, 

engaging in conduct that is likely to endanger the health, safety or welfare of the district or others, 

committing or alleged to have committed a crime, continuing to have poor behavior after a warning 

has been issued or if your guests aren’t complying with all these things.  Essentially it is just a 

policy that says you are supposed to be respectful and comply with the district’s rules and if you 

don’t then the district staff can give an immediate suspension, if the violation is so flagrant that 

they feel it is necessary to remove you from the amenities or you can do a temporary suspension 

or they could in consultation with Marilee’s office issue a suspension that is effective until the next 

board meeting.  There are options and you are going to depend on your amenity management team 

for guidance.  It goes through the hearing process and we give the resident an opportunity to come 

before the board to present their case.  The other thing it does that is important is that if someone 

were to damage district property and that person was identified it authorizes the continued 

suspension of that person until the damages are fixed or paid for.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the public hearing was opened. 

 

 A resident asked who would enforce this?  It doesn’t seem like we have senior team on the 

weekend and it may just be young kids trying to keep the peace out there.  How does that work? 

 Mr. Soriano stated this is the first year you have a weekend assistant.  She is college age, 

but Freddie is here many times on the weekends but not a full 8-hour day.  One person can’t be 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

16 

here for everything.  We have an assistant that is new and that has definitely helped out.  Last year 

we couldn’t keep lifeguards because they were getting yelled out and cussed out and threatened 

by adults.  When the young lifeguards feel supported by everybody by having this in place they 

can make a report and bring it to you.  We will get witness statements and they will be suspended.   

 Ms. Alcott asked what is the pool season?  What are the hours?   

 Ms. Jordan stated the pool is open from sunup to sundown.  I think the gate locks at 8 p.m.  

If you see someone on the pool deck after those hours call any board member and the police. 

 A resident asked did the guest policy get rewritten?  Because at one point you were talking 

about it being vague as to what age you were allowed to bring a guest. 

 Ms. Jordan stated it is 18 to bring anybody under the age of 18 and 14 to come on the pool 

deck alone.   

 A resident asked the person who sits at the gate now, should they be monitoring that? 

 Ms. Jordan stated they should. 

 Mr. Soriano stated the hard part is we don’t know their ages.  You don’t have a card system 

that allows you to see their age.  Unless it is obvious that is an 8 year old bringing friends. 

 A resident stated most high schoolers are not 18 and it is easy to see a group of high school 

kids bringing in people.  It is better than last year but a long way from being good.  Also the tennis 

courts are being abused by kids on skateboards who are also very rude. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is an instance where if we have a witness we can suspend their 

amenity privileges. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the public hearing was closed. 

 

 Ms. Jordan stated I would add the tennis courts in the list. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated it is pretty generic to cover all the amenities, it doesn’t go into detail, 

just district property. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
Resolution 2023-06 was approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Proposals: 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

17 

B. Riverside Management Services 

 This item taken earlier in the meeting. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2023 Audit 

 This item taken later in the meeting. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Matters 

 This item taken earlier in the meeting. 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

 A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Manager -Discussion of Fiscal Year 2024 Meeting Schedule 

 Mr. Rhein asked is there a better time for GMS because I would like more time to review 

the agenda?  I would like more time to go through the agenda once it is released I would like more 

than seven days. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I’m not sure why you need more time, seven days is plenty of time for 

me to read it.  Seven days is a long time to read these documents.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Miller seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the fiscal year 2024 meeting schedule was approved reflecting the 
following dates: October 10, 2023, December 12, 2023, February 13, 
2024, April 9, 2024, June 11, 2024 and August 13, 2024. 

 

 D. Operations/Amenity Manager 

 1. Report 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package. 

 

 2. Monthly quality Inspection Report 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

18 

  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

 This item taken later in the meeting. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 This item taken later in the meeting. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

 A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 A copy of the balance sheet and income statement were included in the agenda package. 

 

 B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 A copy of the assessment receipt schedule was included in the agenda package. 

 

 C. Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the check registers were approved. 

 

The next item taken out of order. 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2023 Audit 

 Ms. Giles stated in the letter to management they did not identify any deficiencies in 

internal controls that are considered to be a material weakness and the district complied in all 

material respects with the requirements for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.  This is a clean 

audit, no significant findings in the prior or current year.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the fiscal year 2023 audit was accepted. 

 

 The next item taken out of order. 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

19 

 Mr. Rhein stated I know we had a discussion about cameras.  I have a dog and I walk 

around the block and there are dogs taking dumps on the sidewalk or by a trashcan.  I don’t know 

what our options may be. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we looked at the area and the problem is not a set a trees nearby that I 

can put a game camera on, that is an open corner. 

 Ms. Jordan stated that falls more under the HOA than us.   

 Mr. Soriano stated the problem is on district property.  The HOA does have that in the 

covenants and it includes areas that they don’t own and I think we need to get them involved but 

it is something occurring on our property but we don’t have any other way to combat it. 

 Mr. Rhein stated you are talking about dog stations but then we are adding continuing costs.   

 Mr. Soriano stated it adds to the thought of a nice amenity but there was a trashcan four 

feet away and they didn’t use it.  I don’t know that it is going to help, but it would look better than 

a regular trashcan.  A doggie station has to be changed out a little more frequent than a trashcan 

and there are continuing expenses. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Mr. Finney stated thanks for letting me be part of the process.  The only thing that felt 

strange to me was the budget not being managed as well as it could.  The appointment of the new 

board member who is not here and there is not a full board to vote on that appointment.  It feels 

like it could have been handled in a different more calm way.  It seemed like it was a rushed 

process and that person was not here anyway and there was a person here who was applying for 

that position.  It just felt like not a great process.   

 Ms. Jordan stated the last board member moved between meetings and we only meet every 

other month to open the position then the next meeting is two months later.  This has been a very 

long process.  The other individual has been on this board before and he is stuck in traffic.   

 Ms. Alcott stated I concur, I thought it was rushed.   

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting to be determined 2023 @ 6:00 
p.m. at Rolling Hills Amenity Center 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is October 10, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at this location. 

 



August 15, 2023 Rolling Hills CDD 

20 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Miller with all in favor 
the meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 





















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



- 1 -  

ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Policies Regarding District 
Amenity Facilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Revised August 15, 2023  



- 2 -  

Purpose and Introduction 
 
This document outlines uniform policies for use of the facilities located on the property owned 
by the Rolling Hills Community Development District ("District") including the Residents' Club, 
Fitness Center, Aquatics Facilities, Tennis Courts, Amphitheatre, and Encompassing Parks. 
 
Specific Authority:  Chapter 190.035; 190.011; 190.012; 120.54, Florida Statutes 
 
Law Implements:  Chapter 190.011; 190.012; 190.035, Florida Statutes 
 
Information contained in these policies is current as of the date of the publication. 
 
 

Definitions 
 
Adult Caregiver: is a designated caregiver that assists a Resident or Annual Passholder with 
disabilities or chronic conditions in the tasks of daily life. 
 
Amenity Pass: is an access card issued to Residents and Annual Pass Holders 8 years of age and 
older. 
 
Annual Pass: is available for purchase to a non-resident for use of the Facilities and Amenities. 
The Annual Pass entitles the non-resident and members of the non- resident's household to use 
the Facilities and Amenities of the District, except in cases that mandate a rental fee as specified 
in the District’s rules and policies. Annual Pass Holders are also entitled to participate in 
functions and activities that Management conducts on a space-available basis. An Annual Pass 
shall be applicable for a twelve (12) month period from date of purchase. The annual pass for 
non-residents is Two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00). 
 
Annual Pass Holder: is a non-resident of the District who pays an annual fee to obtain user 
privileges of the Facilities and Amenities. 
 
Attendees: are Residents, Annual Pass Holders, Guests, Spectators, and Staff present at a facility, 
recreation area, or function on the District's property. 
 
District Lakes: District stormwater management facilities including the sloped areas of the banks 
surrounding the lakes and/or stormwater management facilities. 
 
Facilities and Amenities: includes all of the areas known as the Rolling Hills Amenity Center 
and Encompassing Parks. The Rolling Hills Amenity Center consists of the Residents' Club, 
Fitness Center, Aquatics Facilities, Amphitheater, and Tennis Courts. 
 
Guest: is someone who is not a Resident or Annual Pass Holder who must be accompanied by a 
Resident or Annual Pass Holder in order to use the Facilities and Amenities. 
 
Holidays: are New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents' Day, Mother’s Day, 
Memorial Day, Father’s Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Thanksgiving Day, 



- 3 -  

Christmas Day, and the Friday after Thanksgiving. If a holiday falls on a weekend, holiday guest 
fees will apply. 
 
Management: is the designated management staff of the current management company operating 
the Facilities and Amenities on behalf of the District. 
 
Nanny: is a caregiver designated by a Resident or Annual Pass Holder to accompany a Resident 
or Annual Pass Holder’s children under the age of 13 in use of the Facilities and Amenities. A 
Nanny must be at least 13 years of age. 
 
Operating Hours: are designated in this document for each facility, but may change according to 
need, season, or usage. 
 
Patron: is an owner of assessable real property within the District on which no residence has 
been constructed. For purposes of interpreting these policies and unless otherwise indicated, a 
Patron shall be treated as a Resident. 
 
Resident: is an individual who maintains his or her residence in a home within the District as a 
property owner, renter, or a member of a property owner's or a renter's immediate household that 
resides with the Resident on a permanent basis. Residents have rights to user privileges of the 
Facilities and Amenities except in cases that mandate a rental fee as specified in these policies. 
Proof of residency is required, and may be in the form of driver's license or photo identification. 
 
Spectator: is a person entering a District Aquatic or Tennis Courts to observe an activity or 
event such as a swim meet, a tennis match, or a practice. 
 
Staff: is an employee of the current management company operating the Facilities and Amenities 
on behalf of the District. 
 
 

Access Privileges 
 
Residents with an Amenity Pass and Annual Pass Holders are authorized to use the Facilities 
and Amenities of the District in accordance with the District’s rules and policies. They are also 
entitled to participate in functions and activities that Management conducts on a space-available 
basis. Each Attendee must register prior to entering the Facilities. At the time of registration, 
each person shall identify themselves, and present proof of access privileges. 

 
To assist Staff in efficiently enforcing these Usage Policies, Attendees may at times be asked to 
wear wristbands or other indicators that they have presented proof of access privileges. If 
Attendees are asked to do this, the wristbands or other indicators must be worn at all times while 
the Attendee is present at the Facilities and Amenities. 
 
Property owners within the District may relinquish their rights, in writing, to their Amenity Pass 
to the renter of their property if it is the primary residence of the renter. An Amenity Pass issued 
to a renter shall expire 12 months from issuance, and can be renewed upon verification of 



- 4 -  

residency within the District. 
 

Unless otherwise provided for herein, neither an Amenity Pass nor an Annual Pass may be sold, 
loaned, or transferred in any fashion to gain access to user privileges to Facilities and Amenities. 
Provided however, a Patron who is attempting to sell its property may temporarily assign its 
Patron status to prospective purchasers thereof after Patron enters into an Agreement Regarding 
Assignment of Patron Status with the District, in a form prescribed by the District. 
 
Residents or Annual Pass Holders’ children and grandchildren who do not reside within the 
District, who are under 21 years old and who are not household members, may utilize the 
Facilities and Amenities at no cost if they are accompanied by a Resident or Annual Pass 
Holder. 
 
Children 5 years of age or younger may utilize the Facilities and Amenities at no cost if a 
Resident, Annual Pass Holder, or registered Nanny accompanies them. Children older than 5 
years of age will be charged Guest Fees in accordance with the District’s adopted rates, unless 
otherwise provided for herein. 
 
Upon registration, a Nanny is allowed unlimited visits to the Facilities and Amenities without 
paying a Guest Daily Fee when accompanying a Resident or Annual Pass Holder’s child under 
the age of 13. A Nanny is not allowed to utilize the Facilities and Amenities without the 
Resident or Annual Pass Holder’s child. 
 
Upon registration, an Adult Caregiver is allowed unlimited visits to the Facilities and Amenities 
without paying a Guest Daily Fee when accompanying a Resident or Annual Pass Holder with a 
documented necessity for the services of an Adult Caregiver. An Adult Caregiver may not bring 
guests to the Facilities and Amenities. If a Resident or Annual Pass Holder is accompanied by a 
caregiver other than someone who qualifies as a Nanny or an Adult Caregiver, Management 
may, at its sole discretion, permit the caregiver to visit the Facilities and Amenities without 
paying a Guest Daily Fee when accompanying the Resident or Annual Pass Holder’s children. 
The permission will be subject to any terms or conditions imposed by Management. 

 
Spectators for activities such as swim meets, tennis matches, or practices shall register prior to 
entering the facility. Admission of a Spectator to a facility does not grant user privileges to the 
Spectator to any swimming pool or tennis court. 

 
 

Guest Policy 
 

A Resident or Annual Pass Holder may accompany up to four (4) Guests to the Aquatics Facility 
and Fitness Center, provided that the maximum number of Guests per household shall not 
exceed four (4). 
 
 
 



- 5 -  

 
Conditions of Use of the Amenities and Facilities 

 
Alcohol and Tobacco Usage: State law stipulates that no one under the age of 21 may consume, 
buy, or otherwise possess any alcoholic beverages on property owned by the District. This rule 
is strictly enforced on the premises of any District property. Smoking is not allowed inside the 
Amenity Center or on the pool deck. 
 
Food/Beverages: No glass containers of any type are permitted in any of the Facilities and 
Amenities. All persons using the pool or park areas must keep the area clean by properly 
disposing trash or debris. 
 
Noise: Attendees shall not make, cause or permit, if within his or her control, any artificially 
amplified sound or noise of a continuous duration, which shall disturb the peace, quiet, and repose 
of any other persons of reasonable and ordinary sensibilities (consistent with Sec. 15-5(b), Clay 
County Code). 
 
Parking: No parking is allowed on District-owned premises except where designated. 
 
Pets: Dogs or other pets (with the exception of “Service Animal(s)” trained to do work or perform 
tasks for an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or 
other mental disability) are not permitted within any District-owned public accommodations 
including, but not limited to, amenity buildings (offices, social halls and fitness center), pools, 
tennis courts, basketball courts, playgrounds, parking lots, open spaces and other appurtenances 
or related improvements. Dogs or other pets are allowed at the Dog Park. Attendees must clean 
up after the animals. 
 
A Service Animal must be kept under the control of its handler by leash or harness, unless doing 
so interferes with the Service Animal’s work or tasks or the individual’s disability prevents doing 
so. The District may remove the Service Animal under the following conditions: 
 

• If the Service Animal is out of control and the handler does not take effective measures to 
control it; 
 

• If the Service Animal is not housebroken; or, 
 

• If the Service Animal’s behavior poses a direct threat to the health and safety of others. 
 
The District is prohibited from asking about the nature or extent of an individual’s disability in 
order to determine whether an animal is a Service Animal or pet. However, the District may ask 
whether an animal is a Service Animal required because of a disability and what work or tasks 
the animal has been trained to perform. 
 
Thunderstorm Policy: The lifeguards or Staff are in control of the Aquatics Facility, Water 
Slide, and pool area (collectively, the “Pool Area”) during thunderstorms, heavy rain, and other 



- 6 -  

inclement weather. The lifeguards or Staff will determine whether swimming is permitted or not 
during the times the Aquatic Facility is attended. During periods of heavy rain, thunderstorms, 
and other inclement weather, the Pool Area will be closed. If heavy rain, thunder and/or 
lightning occur, everyone will be required to exit the pool and the Pool Area at the first sound of 
thunder and/or first sighting of lightning for a period of at least thirty (30) minutes. At any point 
during the 30-minute waiting period, if thunder is heard or lightning is seen, the waiting period 
will be extended thirty (30) minutes from the last sound of thunder or sight of lightning. 

 
 

Aquatics Facility and Water Slide 
 

Use of the Aquatics Facility is always at the individual's own risk, even when a lifeguard is 
present.  
The bathing load is set by Clay County at 248 persons. Attendees must present their Amenity 
Pass or Annual Pass to register when they enter. Attendees must observe the following policies: 
 

• During periods of heavy rain, thunderstorms, and other inclement weather, swimming is 
prohibited. Staff reserves the right to close the Pool Area during such times in accordance 
with the Thunderstorm Policy set forth above. 
 

• Everyone must shower before entering the pool. 
 

• Talking to an on-duty lifeguard is not permitted, except in emergencies. 
 

• Persons with documented or visible skin disorders or other maladies that are potentially 
harmful to others will be denied the use of Aquatic Facility. 
 

• Pool chairs may not be placed in the pool. 
 

• All swimmers must wear proper swimming attire. No cut-offs, shorts with buckles or 
rivets, or thongs are allowed in the Aquatics Facility. 
 

• Playing is not allowed in the lap lanes. Jumping off starting blocks, hanging on lane lines, 
and unauthorized diving is prohibited. 
 

• Scuba equipment is not allowed in the pool unless approved by Management in advance. 
 

• Out of consideration for others, radios must be kept at low levels. 
 

• Running, ball playing, and noisy or hazardous activity, is not permitted in the pool area. 
This includes pushing, rough play, dunking, and dangerous games. 
 

• Diving, large floats, rafts, wave riding boards or water guns are not permitted. 
 



- 7 -  

• No food or drink permitted in pool or on pool deck within six (6) feet of the pool. 
Animals and glass containers are prohibited within the fenced pool area. 
 

• Children 14 years of age and up may swim without the supervision of a companion. 
Residents or Guests under the age of 14 years of age must be accompanied by a Resident 
that is 18 years of age or older. 
 

• Parents or companions must be within arm’s length of a non-swimmer when in the water. 
 

• Any child not potty-trained (including those using pull-up diapers) must wear an 
approved swimsuit diaper that fits snugly around the waist and legs. Also, any child 
wearing a disposable swimsuit diaper must wear a swimsuit over the swimsuit diaper. 
 

• Diapers shall only be changed in the restrooms on the changing tables, and not on the pool 
deck, tables, or chairs. 
 

• The District is not responsible for lost or stolen items. 
 

• Persons entering the pool after closing time will be considered trespassing and will be 
subject to arrest. 

 
The following hours apply to the Aquatics Facility during swim season as determined by 
Management: 

Monday - Sunday: 10:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m. 
 

Management may adjust the hours of operation as needed for special events, parties, operational 
and maintenance requirements, and severe weather conditions. These events may require the 
pool to open as early as 7:00 a.m. or as late as 11:00 a.m., and close as early as 3:00 p.m. on 
certain days. 
 
In addition to the Aquatics Facility polices identified above, the following polices apply to the 
usage of the District’s water slide: 
 

• State law requires riders obey all warnings and directions from the Lifeguards and 
Management. Riders must behave in a manner that will not cause or contribute to the 
injury of others or themselves, and report all injuries prior to leaving the Aquatics 
Facility. 
 

• The water slide may only be used when staffed by lifeguards. 
 

• All riders must be at least 42" tall to ride the water slide. 
 

• Riders must be in good physical health. Pregnant women or individuals with heart or back 
conditions should not use this slide. 
 

• Maximum operational load is 1 person, 300 pounds. 



- 8 -  

 
• The line should form on the pool deck with one rider on each landing. 

 
• No combs or foreign objects are allowed in pockets and no jewelry can be worn while 

riding the slide. Exposed zippers, buckles, rivets, or metal ornamentation is prohibited. 
 

• No tubes, mats, or life jackets are permitted on the slide. 
 

• Water level is 3'6" or greater and riders must be able to swim. 
 

• Riders must enter the slide in a sitting position and ride feet first while lying on their back 
with arms crossed over their chest or hands clasped behind their head crossed and their 
legs crossed at the ankles. Absolutely no riding on your stomach or headfirst is permitted. 
 

• No running, standing, kneeling, tumbling, rotating, or stopping on the slide is permitted. 
Arms and hands must remain inside the slide at all times. 
 

• No diving from the slide. 
 

• Only one rider at a time. No trains or chains of riders permitted. 
 

• Children 4 years of age and older may slide alone only if: (1) they are capable of 
swimming in 4 feet of water and (2) they are over 48 inches tall. Otherwise, these children 
are prohibited from sliding. 
 

• All riders must leave the slide pool promptly after entering. 
 
 

Fitness Center 
 

Use of the Fitness Center is at each Attendee's own risk. In consideration of each Attendee, all 
Fitness Center users must adhere to the following policies: 
 

• A Resident or Pass Holder may bring up to two (2) Guests, and must accompany their 
Guest(s) at all times. 
 

• Attendees should wear proper fitness attire, including shirts and closed toed shoes. 
 

• Proper facility use and etiquette recommendations (such as wiping sweat from machines 
after use) will be posted inside the facility as a reminder to attendees. 
 

• Children under the age of 14 are not permitted to use the Fitness Center. 
 
 



- 9 -  

Parks 
 

All Attendees shall observe the policies listed below or face disciplinary action. Management may 
close a park if public safety is threatened by any activity on the premises. 

 
• Park hours of operation are sunrise to sunset. 

 
• No person shall be intoxicated and cause a public disturbance in a park. 

 
• Roller blades and bikes are permitted on sidewalks only. 

 
• No parking is allowed on park premises except where designated. 

 
 

District Lakes 
 

• The District Lakes primarily function as detention ponds to facilitate the District’s system 
for treatment and attenuation of stormwater run-off and overflow. As a result, 
contaminants may be present in the water. 
 

• Residents may fish from any District Lakes. The District has a “catch and release” policy 
for all fish caught in these waters. 
 

• Wading and swimming in District Lakes is prohibited. 
 

• Watercraft of any kind in District Lakes, including but not limited to, boats, rafts or tubes, 
is prohibited. 
 

• Property owners, residents and patrons shall not engage in any conduct or omission that 
violates any ordinance, resolution, law, permit requirement, or regulation of any 
governmental entity relating to the District Lakes. 
 

• No docks or other structures, whether permanent or temporary, shall be constructed and 
placed in District Lakes, unless such structures are properly permitted and approved by 
the District and other applicable governmental agencies. 
 

• No foreign materials may be disposed of in the District Lakes, including but not limited 
to: tree branches, paint, cement, oils, soap suds, building materials, chemicals, fertilizers, 
or any other material that is not naturally occurring or which may be detrimental to the 
lake environment. 
 

• Easements through residential backyards along the District Lakes are for drainage and 
maintenance purposes only. Resident access via these easements is prohibited unless 
specifically granted by the owner of the property on which the easement is located. 
 



- 10 -  

• Any hazardous condition concerning the District Lakes must immediately be reported to 
the District Manager and the proper authorities. 
 

• Property owners and residents are responsible for their tenants’, guests’, and invitees’ 
adherence to these policies. 
 

• The District is not responsible for injury or damage to persons or property, including 
accidental death, resulting from the use of District Lakes. 

 
 

Tennis Courts 
 

Attendees must observe the following policies and etiquette at all times. The Disciplinary Policies 
enclosed in this document apply to all Rolling Hills tennis courts. 
 

• A Resident or Pass Holder must accompany their Guest at the time of registration, during 
the time of their guest usage and will be required to pay the appropriate guest fee. 
 

• Proper tennis attire consists of tennis shoes (not cross-trainers or jogging shoes) and 
tennis clothing (athletic apparel manufactured expressly for tennis). Street trousers, jeans, 
bathing or beach attire are not allowed. 
 

• Courtesy and consideration should be observed at all times. Attendees shall not walk 
across or behind a court while a point is being played. No one shall enter the court when 
play is in progress. Enter in the appropriate area closest to the back of the court while 
courts are in use. Excessive noise, racquet throwing, and profanity are not permitted at 
any time. Disregard for court courtesy should be reported to Management. 
 

• Participation on a team, in a league, or in a clinic is open to Residents, Annual Pass 
Holders and fee-paying guests only. 
 

• The Tennis Courts observe the following hours of operation: Regular Play 8:00 a.m. - 
10:00 p.m. 
 

• Court lights are turned on at dusk and will remain on until 10:00 p.m. If no one is using 
the courts, lights will be turned off. 
 

• Non-playing children, under the age of 11 shall be directly supervised by a person at least 
13 years of age. 
 

• Players under the age of 13 may utilize courts on a space available basis, as determined by 
Management. 
 

• Bikes, skateboards, skates, and scooters are not permitted to be ridden within the Tennis 
Courts. 



- 11 -  

 
Private Functions, Rentals, Competitions, and Instructions 

 
When possible, all private functions, rentals, competitions, and instructions shall be held before 
or after operating hours so as not to interfere with the daily operation or to restrict access to the 
Facilities and Amenities by Residents, Annual Pass Holders, and their Guests. Local school 
groups, philanthropic or charity organizations may utilize the Facilities and Amenities for league 
play, lessons, tournaments, meets, matches, practices, etc. subject to an agreement with the 
District governing such use. 
 
Residents and Annual Pass Holders may hold private functions in accordance with the District’s 
rules and policies, provided that they are in good standing with the District, they are present for 
the duration of the event, and they ensure that guests that are not Residents or Annual Pass 
Holders do not remain on the premises beyond the conclusion of the event. 

 
Attendance at private functions is limited to twenty-five (25) Guests without prior authorization 
from the District. A non-refundable room rental fee of $75.00 will be charged for private 
functions. 
 
Renters must submit a deposit in the amount of $75.00 and rental contract to the District two 
weeks prior to the date of the event. If the event is cancelled, a 1- week notice must be given 
or the deposit is forfeited. Failure to comply with the rules regarding guests that are not 
Residents or Annual Pass Holders may result in a forfeiture of the deposit, loss of Facilities and 
Amenities privileges, or other disciplinary actions as described in the section on Disciplinary 
Actions, Suspension and Termination of Privileges. 
 
 

Suspension and Termination of Access Rule 
 

1.   Introduction. This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters relating to the use of 
the Amenity Facilities. 

 
2.   General Rule. All persons using the Amenity Facilities and entering District properties are 
responsible for compliance with the Policies and Rules established for the safe operations of the 
Amenity Facilities. 

 
3.   Access Cards / Key Fobs. Access Cards are the property of the District. The District may 
request surrender of, or may deactivate, a person’s access card or key fob for violation of the 
District’s Policies and Rules established for the safe operations of the Amenity Facilities.  

 
4.   Suspension and Termination of Rights. The District shall have the right to restrict, suspend, 
or terminate the Amenity access of any person and members of their household to use all or a 
portion of the Amenities for any of the following acts (each, a “Violation”):  
 

a. Submitting false information on any application for use of the Amenities, including but 
not limited to facility rental applications; 



- 12 -  

 
b. Failing to abide by the terms of rental applications; 
 
c. Permitting the unauthorized use of an Access Card or otherwise facilitates or allows 

unauthorized use of the Amenities; 
 
d. Exhibiting inappropriate behavior or repeatedly wearing inappropriate attire; 
 
e. Failing to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner (with the 

exception of special assessments); 
 
f. Failing to abide by any District Policies and Rules (e.g., this Amenity Policies, Rules 

and Rates document); 
 
g. Treating the District’s staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, or 

Patrons in a harassing or abusive manner; 
 
h. Damaging, destroying, rendering inoperable or interfering with the operation of District 

property, or other property located on District property;  
 
i. Failing to reimburse the District for property damaged by such person, or a minor for 

whom the person has charge, or a guest;  
 
j. Engaging in conduct that is likely to endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the 

District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, or Patrons;  
 
k. Committing or is alleged, in good faith, to have committed a crime on or off District 

property that leads the District to reasonably believe the health, safety or welfare of the 
District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, or Patrons is likely 
endangered; 

 
l. Engaging in another Violation after a verbal warning has been given by staff (which 

verbal warning is not required); or 
 
m. Such person’s guest or a member of their household commits any of the above 

Violations.  
 

Termination of Amenity Facilities access shall only be considered and implemented by the 
Board in situations that pose a long term or continuing threat to the health, safety and/or welfare 
of the District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, and Patrons. The 
Board, in its sole discretion and upon motion of any Board member, may vote to rescind a 
termination of Amenity access.   

 
5.   Administrative Reimbursement. The Board may in its discretion require payment of an 
administrative reimbursement of up to Five Hundred Dollars ($500) in order to offset the legal 
and/or administrative expenses incurred by the District as a result of a Violation 



- 13 -  

(“Administrative Reimbursement”). Such Administrative Reimbursement shall be in addition to 
any suspension or termination of Amenity access, any applicable legal action warranted by the 
circumstances, and/or any Property Damage Reimbursement (defined below).  

 
6.   Property Damage Reimbursement. If damage to District property occurred in connection with 
a Violation, the person or persons who caused the damage, or the person whose guest caused the 
damage, or the person who has charge of a minor that caused the damage, shall reimburse the 
District for the costs of cleaning, repairing, and/or replacing the property (“Property Damage 
Reimbursement”).  Such Property Damage Reimbursement shall be in addition to any 
suspension or termination of Amenity access, any applicable legal action warranted by the 
circumstances, and/or any Administrative Reimbursement. 

 
7.   Removal from Amenities. The District Manager, Amenity Manager and onsite staff each 
have the independent ability to remove any person from the Amenities if a Violation occurs, or 
if in his or her discretion, it is in the District’s best interest to do so.  

 
8.   Initial Suspension from Amenities. The District Manager, Amenity Manager or his or her 
designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or causes, including but not limited to a 
Violation, any person’s access to the Amenities until a date not later than the next regularly 
scheduled meeting date of the Board that is scheduled to occur at least twenty-one (21) days 
after the date of initial suspension.  In the event of such a suspension, the District Manager or his 
or her designee shall mail a letter to the person suspended referencing the conduct at issue, the 
sections of the District’s Policies and Rules violated, the time, date, and location of the next 
regular Board meeting where the person’s suspension will be presented to the Board, and a 
statement that the person has a right to appear before the Board and offer testimony and 
evidence why the suspension should be lifted. If the person is a minor, the letter shall be sent to 
the adults at the address within the community where the minor resides.  

 
9. Hearing by the Board; Administrative Reimbursement; Property Damage Reimbursement.   

 
a. At the Board meeting referenced in the letter sent under Section 8 above, or as soon 

thereafter as a Board meeting is held if the meeting referenced in the letter is canceled, a 
hearing shall be held at which both District staff and the person subject to the 
suspension shall be given the opportunity to appear, present testimony and evidence, 
cross examine witnesses present, and make arguments. The Board may also ask 
questions of District staff, the person subject to the suspension, and witnesses present.  
All persons are entitled to be represented by a licensed Florida attorney at such hearing.   
 

b. After the presentations by District staff and the person subject to the suspension, the 
Board shall consider the facts and circumstances and determine whether to lift or extend 
the suspension or impose a termination. In determining the length of any suspension, or 
a termination, the Board shall consider the nature of the conduct, the circumstances of 
the conduct, the number of Policies and Rules violated, the person’s escalation or de-
escalation of the situation, and any prior Violations and/or suspensions   
 

c. The Board shall also determine whether an Administrative Reimbursement is warranted 
and, if so, set the amount of such Administrative Reimbursement. 



- 14 -  

 
d. The Board shall also determine whether a Property Damage Reimbursement is 

warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Property Damage Reimbursement. If the 
cost to clean, repair and/or replace the property is not yet available, the Property 
Damage Reimbursement shall be fixed at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting 
after the cost to clean, repair, and/or replace the property is known. 
 

e. After the conclusion of the hearing, the District Manager shall mail a letter to the person 
suspended identifying the Board’s determination at such hearing. 

 
10. Suspension by the Board. The Board on its own initiative acting at a noticed public meeting 
may elect to consider a suspension of a person’s access for committing any of the Violations 
outlined in Section 4. In such circumstance, a letter shall be sent to the person suspended which 
contains all the information required by Section 8, and the hearing shall be conducted in 
accordance with Section 9. 

 
11. Automatic Extension of Suspension for Non-Payment. Unless there is an affirmative vote of 
the Board otherwise, no suspension or termination will be lifted or expire until all 
Administrative Reimbursements and Property Damage Reimbursements have been paid to the 
District. If an Administrative Reimbursement or Property Damage Reimbursement is not paid by 
its due date, the District reserves the right to request surrender of, or deactivate, all access cards 
or key fobs associated with an address within the District until such time as the outstanding 
amounts are paid. 

 
12. Appeal of Board Suspension. After the hearing held by the Board required by Section 9, a 
person subject to a suspension or termination may appeal the suspension or termination, or the 
assessment or amount of an Administrative Reimbursement or Property Damage 
Reimbursement, to the Board by filing a written request for an appeal (“Appeal Request”). The 
filing of an Appeal Request shall not result in the stay of the suspension or termination. The 
Appeal Request shall be filed within thirty (30) calendar days after mailing of the notice of the 
Board’s determination as required by Section 9(e), above. For purposes of this Rule, wherever 
applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. 
Failure to file an Appeal Request shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the District’s 
suspension or termination, and shall constitute a failure to exhaust administrative remedies. The 
District shall consider the appeal at a Board meeting and shall provide reasonable notice to the 
person of the Board meeting where the appeal will be considered. At the appeal stage, no new 
evidence shall be offered or considered.  Instead, the appeal is an opportunity for the person 
subject to the suspension or termination to argue, based on the evidence elicited at the hearing, 
why the suspension or termination should be reduced or vacated. The Board may take any action 
deemed by it in its sole discretion to be appropriate under the circumstances, including 
affirming, overturning, or otherwise modifying the suspension or termination. The Board’s 
decision on appeal shall be final. 

 
13. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution; Trespass. If any person is found to have committed a 
Violation, such person may additionally be subject to arrest for trespassing or other applicable 
legal action, civil or criminal in nature. If a person subject to a suspension or termination is 
found at an Amenity Facility, such Person will be subject to arrest for trespassing. If a trespass 



- 15 -  

warrant is issued to a person by a law enforcement agency, the District has no obligation to seek 
a withdrawal or termination of the trespass warrant even though the issuance of the trespass 
warrant may effectively prevent a person from using the Amenity Facilities after expiration of a 
suspension imposed by the District. 

 
14. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this rule shall be held to be 
invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this rule shall continue in full force and 
effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the remainder of this rule would have 
been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of such section. 

 
  



- 16 -  

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND DISCLAIMER 
 

Any Attendee who, in any manner, makes use of or accepts the use of the Amenities and 
Facilities or service whatsoever owned, leased or operated by the District or its contractors, or 
who engages in any activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District, shall do 
so at his or her own risk, and shall hold the District, the Board of Supervisors, District 
employees, District representatives, District contractors, and District agents harmless for any and 
all loss, cost, claim, injury damage or liability sustained or incurred by him or her, resulting 
there from and/or from any act or omission of the District, or its Board of Supervisors, 
employees, representatives, contractors, or agents. Should any party bound by these Amenity 
and Facilities Policies bring suit against the District or its affiliates, operator, officers, 
employees, representatives, contractors or agents in connection with any event operated, 
organized, arranged or sponsored by the District or any other claim or matter in connection with 
any event operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District, and fail to obtain judgment 
therein against the District or its officers, employee, representative, contractor or agent, said 
party shall be liable to the District for all costs and expenses incurred by it in the defense of 
such suit (including court costs and attorney's fees through all appellate proceedings). 

 
I hereby acknowledge the receipt of the Rolling Hills Community Development District 
Facilities and Amenities Policies, as may be subsequently amended, and agree to abide by the 
terms and conditions contained therein and such future terms and conditions as may be approved 
by the Rolling Hills Community Development District Board of Supervisors. 
 
 
 
Print Name:  _______________________________________ 
 
Address:___________________________________________ 
 
                ___________________________________________ 
 
Signature:  _________________________________________ 
 
Date:  _____________________________________________ 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway · Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

	
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:             October 10th, 2023   
 
To:  Jerry Lambert, Operations Director 
 
From:  Freddie Oca, Facility Manager  
                        Jay Soriano, GMS Operations 
  
 
Re:  Rolling Hills CDD - Monthly Operations Report: August-September 
General 
 
● www.RollingHillsCDD.com website is up and running; documents such as annual audits, 

meeting minutes and annual budgets will be updated as they become available.	
	

● Red	Hawk	food	truck	was	here	on	August	8th		
● Jags	Boilers	Food	Truck	was	here	on	August	15th	
● Pizza	Pit	Food	truck	was	here	on	August	22nd	
● Roaming	Ronin	Food	truck	was	here	on	August	29th	 	
● The	Community	Yard	sale	was	on	Aug	5th	
● Fefe’s	food	truck	was	here	on	Sept	5th	
● Smackin’	food	truck	was	here	on	May	2nd	
● Red	Hawk	BBQ	food	truck	was	here	on	May	9th	
● Munchies	Food	truck	was	here	on	May	16th	
● Roamin	Ronin	food	truck	was	here	on	May	26th	
● Summer	Bash	had	135	residents	in	attendance	
● Halloween	event	is	scheduled	for	Oct	20th	
● Four (4) sets of access cards were issued.	
● An off-duty Police Officer is continuing to patrol Rolling Hills twice a week.	

	
 
Operations: 
 

• Walk	through	inspection	with	Tree	Amigos				
• Set-up	vendors	for	the	upcoming	events	
• Set-up	entertainment	for	the	upcoming	events	
	

 
 

 
 

http://www.rollinghillscdd.com/


 
 
 
Maintenance: 
 
● Southeast	Fitness	performed	the	preventative	maintenance	and	made	repairs	of	the	

fitness	equipment	
● Lake	Doctors	conducted	their	monthly	maintenance	on	the	ponds	
● Action	LLC	pressure	washed	the	bridge	
● The	back	gate	has	been	reinstalled		
● Clay	County	Master	plumbing	has	replaced	two	(2)	water	fountains	on	the	tennis	courts	
● Pool	signs	have	been	installed	
● Tennis	signs	have	been	installed	
● The	20	mph	signs	have	been	installed	for	the	whole	community	
● (6)	Six	no	fishing	signs	have	been	installed	around	the	lakes	
● (2)	Two	new	stop	signs	have	been	installed	
● The	splash	pad	has	been	pressure	washed	
● The	gate	to	the	pool	has	been	repaired	
● The	light	fixture	in	the	utility	closet	has	been	replaced	
● The	monthly	inspection	on	the	bridge	has	been	completed	
● The	park	locations	are	being	policed	weekly	for	debris	
● All	District	Lakes	are	being	inspected	and	cleaned	bi-weekly.	
● Lake	water	out	falls	are	inspected	and	cleaned	on	a	monthly	basis	to	ensure	proper	

water	flow.	
● Irrigation	inspections	and	needed	repairs	are	being	completed	on	a	monthly	basis.	
● An	inspection	of	the	Amenity	Center	lighting	was	performed.	
● Trash	can	liners	are	being	changed	on	a	weekly	basis.	
	
	
	
	
		
Action	List	
	
	Contacted	CCSO	to	work	on	weekends	
	
 
Resident Requests/Comments: 
 

Should you have any questions or comments regarding the above information, please feel 
free to contact Freddie at (904) 338-5723 or Jerry at (904) 807-2763 

	
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
August	31,	2023



1

2-3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12-13

14-15

16 Assessment	Receipt	Schedule

Month	to	Month

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Table	of	Contents

Balance	Sheet

General	Fund

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	A-1

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	A-2

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	A-3

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2020

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2022

Capital	Project	Fund	Series	2020

Capital	Project	Fund	Series	2022

Capital	Reserve	Fund



Page 3

	 General	 Debt	Service	 Capital	Reserve Capital	Project Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Cash:
Operating	Account 392,905$																											 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 392,905$																											

Investments:
State	Board	of	Administration	(SBA) 143,000																														 -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 143,000																														
State	Board	of	Administration	(SBA) -																																															 -																																															 143,581																														 143,581																														

-																																															
Series	2015	A-1 -																																															
Reserve	 -																																															 -		 89,269																																	 -		 -																																															 -		 -																																															 89,269																																	
Revenue		 -																																															 -		 55,598																																	 -		 -																																															 -		 -																																															 55,598																																	
Prepayment	A1 -																																															 -		 665																																								 -		 -																																															 -		 -																																															 665																																								

Series	2015	A-2 -																																															
Reserve	 -																																															 100,000																														 -																																															 -																																															 100,000																														
Revenue		 -																																															 48,384																																	 -																																															 -																																															 48,384																																	
Prepayment	 -																																															 468																																								 -																																															 -																																															 468																																								

Series	2015	A-3 -																																															
Reserve	 -																																															 4,692																																				 -																																															 -																																															 4,692																																				
Revenue		 -																																															 14,550																																	 -																																															 -																																															 14,550																																	
Prepayment	 -																																															 0																																														 -																																															 -																																															 0																																														

Series	2020	A-1 -																																															
Reserve	 -																																															 165,981																														 -																																															 -																																															 165,981																														
Revenue		 -																																															 25,610																																	 -																																															 -																																															 25,610																																	
Construction -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 195																																								 195																																								

Series	2020	A-2
Reserve	 -																																															 66,025																																	 -																																															 -																																															 66,025																																	
Interest -																																															 3,168																																				 -																																															 -																																															 3,168																																				
Prepayment -																																															 128,258																														 -																																															 -																																															 128,258																														

Series	2022	A-1 -																																															
Reserve	 -																																															 348,122																														 -																																															 -																																															 348,122																														
Revenue		 -																																															 35,849																																	 -																																															 -																																															 35,849																																	
Construction -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 225																																								 225																																								

Series	2022	A-2 -																																															
Reserve	 -																																															 173,010																														 -																																															 -																																															 173,010																														

Total	Assets 535,904$																								 1,259,648$																			 143,581$																								 420$																																				 1,939,553$																			

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 39,153$																														 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 39,153$																														

Total	Liabilites 39,153$																											 -$																																					 -$																																					 -$																																					 39,153$																											

Fund	Balance: 	
Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	-	Series	 -$																																						 1,259,648$																							 -$																																						 1,259,648$																							
Capital	Project	-	Series	 -																																															 -																																															 143,581																														 -																																															 143,581																														

Assigned	for:	
Capital	Reserve	Fund -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 420																																								 420																																								

Unassigned 496,751																														 -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 496,751																														

Total	Fund	Balances 496,751$																								 1,259,648$																			 143,581$																								 420$																																				 1,900,400$																			

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 535,904$																											 1,259,648$																							 143,581$																											 420$																																					 1,939,553$																							

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
August	31,	2023



Page 4

Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 447,640$														 447,640$														 448,606$														 966$																													
Special	Assessments	-	Direct 460,770																 460,770																 316,930																 (143,840)																				
Swim	&	Tennis	Revenue -																																		 550																										 550																																
Facility	Rental	Fees 3,500																						 3,208																						 3,500																						 292																																
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 5,538																						 5,538																												
Land	Sale	Proceeds -																																		 -																																		 14,800																			 14,800																									

Total		Revenues 911,910$														 	 911,618$														 	 789,924$														 	 (121,695)$																	

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 8,000$																				 8,000$																				 5,800$																				 2,200$																									
PR-FICA 612																										 -	 612																										 444																										 168																																
Engineering 2,000																						 1,833																						 -																																		 1,833																												
Attorney 20,000																			 18,333																			 15,394																			 2,940																												
Annual	Audit 3,200																						 3,200																						 7,300																						 (4,100)																										
Assessment	Administration 5,000																						 5,000																						 5,000																						 -																																							
Arbitrage	Rebate 1,800																						 1,800																						 1,200																						 600																																
Dissemination	Agent 7,500																						 6,875																						 6,875																						 -																																							
Trustee	Fees 12,122																			 12,122																			 16,163																			 (4,041)																										
Management	Fees 42,436																			 38,900																			 38,900																			 0																																						
Information	Technology 1,000																						 917																										 917																										 0																																						
Website	Maintenance 2,500																						 2,292																						 2,520																						 (228)																														
Travel	&	Per	Diem 500																										 458																										 -																																		 458																																
Telephone 500																										 458																										 111																										 348																																
Postage	&	Delivery 500																										 458																										 306																										 152																																
Insurance	General	Liability 10,729																			 10,729																			 9,611																						 1,118																												
Printing	&	Binding 1,250																						 1,146																						 608																										 538																																
Legal	Advertising 5,000																						 4,583																						 951																										 3,632																												
Other	Current	Charges 1,400																						 1,283																						 205																										 1,078																												
Office	Supplies 100																										 92																													 161																										 (69)																																	
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																										 175																										 175																										 -																																							

Total	General	&	Administrative 126,324$														 	 119,267$														 	 112,638$														 	 6,629$																									

Operations	&	Maintenance

Field	Expenditures
Operations	Management 23,944$																	 21,949$																	 21,949$																	 0$																																			
Utilities	-	Irrigation	&	Streetlights 35,000																			 32,083																			 34,695																			 (2,612)																										
Repairs	&	Maintenance 40,000																			 36,667																			 27,134																			 9,533																												
Landscape		 78,540																			 71,995																			 80,142																			 (8,147)																										
Landscape	-	Contingency 15,000																			 13,750																			 478																										 13,272																									
Mulch 15,000																			 13,750																			 -																																		 13,750																									
Lake	Maintenance 8,000																						 7,333																						 6,132																						 1,201																												
Irrigation	Repairs 5,000																						 4,583																						 5,165																						 (582)																														
Miscellaneous -																																		 -																																		 -																																		 -																																							

Subtotal	Field	Expenditures 220,484$														 	 202,110$														 	 175,694$														 	 26,416$																						

Rolling	Hills



Page 5

Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Rolling	Hills

Amenity	Center	Expenditures
Facility	Management 63,743$																	 58,431$																	 58,431$																	 (0)$																																	
Facility	Asst/Gate	Monitor 10,500																			 9,625																						 8,347																						 1,278																												
Pool	Attendants 40,754																			 37,358																			 15,190																			 22,168																									
Refuse	Service 7,200																						 6,600																						 6,203																						 397																																
Security 15,000																			 13,750																			 8,639																						 5,111																												
Utilities 55,000																			 50,417																			 44,212																			 6,204																												
Recreation	Passes 1,000																						 917																										 -																																		 917																																
Repairs	&	Maintenance 40,000																			 36,667																			 48,352																			 (11,685)																							
Janitorial 13,862																			 12,707																			 12,707																			 (0)																																				
Fertilization,	Weed	&	Pest	Control -																																		 -																																		 -																																		 -																																							
Pool	Maintenance 14,742																			 13,514																			 13,514																			 -																																							
Special	Events 6,000																						 5,500																						 3,303																						 2,197																												
Operating	Supplies 10,000																			 9,167																						 7,346																						 1,821																												
Pool	Chemicals 11,000																			 10,083																			 19,295																			 (9,212)																										
Permit 375																										 344																										 475																										 (131)																														
Insurance 41,665																			 38,193																			 29,256																			 8,937																												
Capital	Outlay -																																		 -																																		 20,680																			 (20,680)																							

Subtotal	Amenity	Expenditures 330,841$														 303,271$														 295,950$														 7,321$																									

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 551,325$														 505,381$														 471,644$														 33,737$																						

Total	Expenditures 677,649$														 624,648$														 584,282$														 40,366$																						

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 234,261$														 286,970$														 205,642$														 (81,328)$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) (234,261)$												 -$																															 -$																															 -$																																					

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) (234,261)$												 	 -$																															 	 -$																															 	 -$																																					

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance -$																															 286,970$														 205,642$														 (81,328)$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 291,109$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 496,751$														



Page 6

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues
	
Interest -$																																			 -$																															 5,429$																				 5,429$																				

Total		Revenues -$																																			 -$																															 5,429$																				 5,429$																				

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 -$																																			 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Expenditures -$																																			 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																																			 5,429$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) 234,261$																	 234,261$													 -$																															 (234,261)$												

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) 234,261$																	 234,261$													 -$																															 (234,261)$												

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 234,261$																	 5,429$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																			 138,152$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 234,261$																	 143,581$														



Page 7

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	A-1

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 174,001$														 174,001$														 173,174$														 (827)$																						
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 4,518																						 4,518																						

Total		Revenues 174,001$														 174,001$														 177,691$														 3,690$																				

Expenditures:

Interest	Expense	-	11/1 47,461$																	 47,461$																	 47,461$																	 -$																															
Interest	Expense	-	5/1 47,461																			 47,461																			 47,461																			 -																																		
Principal	Expense	-	5/1 80,000																			 80,000																			 80,000																			 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 174,923$														 174,923$														 174,923$														 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (922)$																						 (922)$																						 2,769$																				 3,690$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (922)$																						 (922)$																						 2,769$																				 3,690$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 62,622$																	 142,762$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 61,701$																	 145,531$														



Page 8

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	A-2,	2015	B
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 136,800$														 136,800$														 137,096$														 296$																								
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 4,368																						 4,368																						

Total		Revenues 136,800$														 136,800$														 141,463$														 4,663$																				

Expenditures:

Interest	Expense	11/1 37,628$																	 37,628$																	 37,628$																	 -$																															
Special	Call	-	11/1 -																																		 -																																		 5,000																						 (5,000)																				
Principal	Expense	5/1 55,000																			 55,000																			 55,000																			 -																																		
Interest	Expense	5/1 37,628																			 37,628																			 37,628																			 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 130,256$														 130,256$														 135,256$														 (5,000)$																		

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 6,544$																				 6,544$																				 6,207$																				 (337)$																						

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 6,544$																				 6,544$																				 6,207$																				 (337)$																						

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 42,550$																	 142,645$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 49,094$																	 148,852$														



Page 9

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	A-3

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 41,481$																	 41,481$																	 40,786$																	 (695)$																						
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 657																										 657																										

Total		Revenues 41,481$																	 41,481$																	 41,443$																	 (38)$																									

Expenditures:

Interest	Expense	-	11/1 12,730$																	 12,730$																	 12,730$																	 -$																															
Principal	Expense	-	5/1 15,000																			 15,000$																	 15,000																			 -																																		
Interest	Expense	-	5/1 12,730																			 12,730$																	 12,730																			 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 40,460$																	 40,460$																	 40,460$																	 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 1,021$																				 1,021$																				 983$																								 (38)$																									

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 1,021$																				 1,021$																				 983$																								 (38)$																									

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 13,746$																	 18,259$																	
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 14,767$																	 19,242$																	



Page 10

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2020	A-1	&	A-2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	A-1-	Tax	Roll 165,981$														 165,981$														 196,098$														 30,117$																	
Special	Assessments	A-2-	Tax	Roll 67,213																			 67,213																			 46,152																			 (21,061)																	
Prepayments -																																		 -																																		 127,070																 127,070																
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 6,626																						 6,626																						

Total		Revenues 233,194$														 233,194$														 375,946$														 142,752$														

Expenditures:

Series	2020	A-1
Interest	Expense	-	11/1 58,356$																	 58,356$																	 58,356$																	 -$																															
Interest	Expense	-	5/1 58,356																			 58,356																			 58,356																			 -																																		
Principal	Expense	-	5/1 50,000																			 50,000																			 50,000																			 -																																		

Series	2020	A-2
Interest	Expense	-	11/1 33,013																			 33,013																			 33,013																			 -																																		
Interest	Expense	-	5/1 33,013																			 33,013																			 33,013																			 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 232,738$														 232,738$														 232,738$														 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 457$																								 457$																								 143,208$														 142,752$														

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 457$																								 457$																								 143,208$														 142,752$														

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 67,375$																	 245,834$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 67,832$																	 389,042$														



Page 11

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2022	A-1	&	A-2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	A-1-	Tax	Roll 345,544$														 345,544$														 254,271$														 (91,273)$															
Special	Assessments	A-2-	Tax	Roll 173,010																 173,010																 86,505																			 (86,505)																	
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 13,837																			 13,837																			

Total		Revenues 518,554$														 518,554$														 354,613$														 (163,941)$												

Expenditures:

Series	2022	A-1
Interest	Expense	-	11/1 115,272$														 115,272$														 115,272$														 -$																															
Interest	Expense	-	5/1 115,272																 115,272																 115,272																 -																																		
Principal	Expense	-	5/1 115,000																 115,000																 115,000																 -																																		

Series	2022	A-2
Interest	Expense	-	11/1 86,505																			 86,505																			 86,505																			 -																																		
Interest	Expense	-	5/1 86,505																			 86,505																			 86,505																			 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 518,554$														 518,554$														 518,554$														 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 0$																														 0$																														 (163,941)$												 (163,941)$												

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 (2,482)$																		 (2,482)$																		

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 (2,482)$																		 (2,482)$																		

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 0$																														 0$																														 (166,422)$												 (166,423)$												

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 201,782$														 723,403$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 201,782$														 556,981$														



Page 12

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	Series		2020	A-1	&	A-2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues
	
Developer	Contributions -$																															 -$																															 1,345,240$												 1,345,240$													
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																	 193																													 193																														

Total		Revenues -$																															 -$																															 1,345,433$												 1,345,433$													

Expenditures:

Improvements -$																															 -$																															 761,704$																 (761,704)$															

Total	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 761,704$																 (761,704)$															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 583,729$																 583,729$																	

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																																		 -$																																			

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																																		 -$																																			

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance -$																															 583,729$																

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 (583,533)$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 	 	 195$																										



Page 13

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	Series		2022	A-1	&	A-2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/23 Thru	08/31/23 Variance

Revenues
	
Developer	Contributions -$																															 -$																															 838,305$																	 838,305$																	
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																	 24,850																							 24,850																							

Total		Revenues -$																															 -$																															 863,155$																	 863,155$																	

Expenditures:

Improvements -$																															 -$																															 3,808,241$													 (3,808,241)$											

Total	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 3,808,241$													 (3,808,241)$											

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 (2,945,087)$											 (2,945,087)$											

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 2,482$																							 2,482$																							

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 2,482$																							 2,482$																							

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance -$																															 (2,942,605)$											

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 2,942,830$													

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 	 	 225$																											



Page	14

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Adopted	Budget Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 447,640$													 -$																						 14,979$														 420,246$											 3,071$																	 384$																					 848$																					 5,600$																	 2,036$																	 1,442$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 448,606$													
Special	Assessments	-	Direct 460,770															 -																															 -																															 73,711																 -																															 65,057																 168,313													 -																															 -																															 9,849																			 -																															 -																															 -																															 316,930															
Swim	&	Tennis	Revenue -																																	 -																															 -																															 -																															 245																							 140																							 165																							 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 550																									
Facility	Rental	Fees 3,500																					 -																															 -																															 650																							 -																															 850																							 	 450																							 -																															 375																							 1,175																			 -																															 -																															 3,500																					
Interest	Income -																																	 253																							 284																							 322																							 342																							 586																							 1,895																			 585																							 -																															 621																							 652																							 -																															 -																															 5,538																					
Land	Sale	Proceeds -																																	 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 14,800																 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 14,800																		

Total		Revenues 911,910$													 253$																					 15,263$														 494,928$											 3,658$																	 67,017$														 171,220$											 6,635$																	 16,836$														 12,287$														 1,827$																	 -$																						 -$																						 789,924$													

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 8,000$																			 800$																					 -$																						 1,000$																	 -$																						 1,000$																	 -$																						 800$																					 800$																					 800$																					 -$																						 600$																					 -$																						 5,800$																			
PR-FICA 612																									 61																										 -																															 77																										 -																															 77																										 -																															 61																										 61																										 61																										 -																															 46																										 -																															 444																									
Engineering 2,000																					 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																	
Attorney 20,000																		 1,473																			 1,356																			 2,942																			 815																							 2,079																			 1,364																			 1,801																			 -																															 672																							 2,507																			 385																							 -																															 15,394																		
Annual	Audit 3,200																					 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 7,300																			 -																															 -																															 7,300																					
Assessment	Administration 5,000																					 5,000																			 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 5,000																					
Arbitrage	Rebate 1,800																					 -																															 -																															 -																															 1,200																			 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 1,200																					
Dissemination	Agent 7,500																					 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 625																							 -																															 6,875																					
Trustee	Fees 12,122																		 -																															 -																															 -																															 8,081																			 4,041																			 -																															 -																															 4,041																			 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 16,163																		
Management	Fees 42,436																		 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 3,536																			 -																															 38,900																		
Information	Technology 1,000																					 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 83																										 -																															 917																									
Website	Maintenance 2,500																					 208																							 208																							 208																							 208																							 436																							 208																							 208																							 208																							 208																							 208																							 208																							 -																															 2,520																					
Travel	&	Per	Diem 500																									 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																	
Telephone 500																									 12																										 -																															 2																													 2																													 39																										 -																															 -																															 45																										 11																										 1																													 -																															 -																															 111																									
Postage	&	Delivery 500																									 -																															 -																															 -																															 66																										 35																										 -																															 30																										 32																										 75																										 69																										 -																															 -																															 306																									
Insurance	General	Liability 10,729																		 9,611																			 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 9,611																					
Printing	&	Binding 1,250																					 11																										 37																										 29																										 96																										 -																															 -																															 30																										 206																							 172																							 18																										 11																										 -																															 608																									
Legal	Advertising 5,000																					 7																													 46																										 -																															 46																										 -																															 48																										 46																										 -																															 238																							 -																															 520																							 -																															 951																									
Other	Current	Charges 1,400																					 -																															 -																															 75																										 30																										 -																															 -																															 100																							 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 205																									
Office	Supplies 100																									 -																															 68																										 -																															 0																													 -																															 -																															 -																															 93																										 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 161																									
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																									 175																							 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 175																									

Total	General	&	Administrative 21,603$														 5,959$																	 8,577$																	 14,788$														 11,951$														 5,864$																	 7,320$																	 9,730$																	 6,482$																	 14,348$														 6,014$																	 -$																												 112,638$													

Operations	&	Maintenance

Field	Expenditures
Operations	Management 23,944$																 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 1,995$																	 -$																						 21,949$																
Utilities	-	Irrigation	&	Streetlights 35,000																		 2,831																			 3,838																			 1,979																			 159																							 4,957																			 2,098																			 2,726																			 4,804																			 4,584																			 3,168																			 3,551																			 -																															 34,695																		
Repairs	&	Maintenance 40,000																		 2,746																			 3,536																			 1,755																			 -																															 2,463																			 4,556																			 2,499																			 -																															 2,090																			 2,576																			 4,914																			 -																															 27,134																		
Landscape		 78,540																		 6,072																			 6,072																			 6,072																			 6,072																			 6,072																			 6,072																			 7,301																			 6,379																			 6,379																			 6,379																			 17,269																 -																															 80,142																		
Landscape	-	Contingency 15,000																		 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 478																							 -																															 -																															 -																															 478																									
Mulch 15,000																		 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																	
Lake	Maintenance 8,000																					 489																							 513																							 513																							 513																							 513																							 513																							 -																															 -																															 513																							 1,539																			 1,026																			 -																															 6,132																					
Irrigation	Repairs 5,000																					 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 2,060																			 -																															 -																															 -																															 1,525																			 1,580																			 -																															 -																															 5,165																					
Miscellaneous -																																	 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																	

Subtotal	Field	Expenditures 14,133$														 15,954$														 12,315$														 8,739$																	 18,060$														 15,234$														 14,522$														 13,179$														 17,565$														 17,238$														 28,756$														 -$																												 175,694$													

Amenity	Center	Expenditures
Facility	Management 63,743$																 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 5,312$																	 -$																						 58,431$																
Facility	Asst/Gate	Monitor 10,500																		 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 750																							 1,036																			 2,176																			 2,468																			 1,919																			 -																															 8,347																					
Pool	Attendants 40,754																		 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 1,625																			 4,644																			 5,639																			 3,282																			 -																															 15,190																		
Refuse	Service 7,200																					 494																							 499																							 607																							 607																							 500																							 -																															 1,144																			 -																															 588																							 1,176																			 588																							 -																															 6,203																					
Security 15,000																		 541																							 693																							 1,064																			 783																							 811																							 912																							 767																							 534																							 1,008																			 1,022																			 504																							 -																															 8,639																					
Utilities 55,000																		 3,942																			 4,836																			 4,564																			 3,521																			 4,919																			 4,020																			 3,129																			 3,494																			 4,529																			 635																							 6,623																			 -																															 44,212																		
Recreation	Passes 1,000																					 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																	
Repairs	&	Maintenance 40,000																		 2,710																			 3,851																			 2,976																			 1,083																			 1,864																			 3,615																			 2,686																			 6,135																			 7,771																			 9,883																			 5,779																			 -																															 48,352																		
Janitorial 13,862																		 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 1,155																			 -																															 12,707																		
Pool	Maintenance 14,742																		 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 1,229																			 -																															 13,514																		
Special	Events 6,000																					 (161)																					 225																							 805																							 -																															 611																							 270																							 -																															 300																							 448																							 516																							 290																							 -																															 3,303																					
Operating	Supplies 10,000																		 177																							 1,271																			 453																							 780																							 856																							 186																							 796																							 -																															 1,012																			 1,814																			 -																															 7,346																					
Pool	Chemicals 11,000																		 -																															 899																							 -																															 -																															 1,143																			 1,459																			 1,035																			 3,705																			 2,916																			 4,124																			 4,015																			 -																															 19,295																		
Permit 375																									 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 475																							 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 475																									
Insurance 41,665																		 29,256																 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 29,256																		
Capital	Outlay -																																	 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 4,375																			 16,305																 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 20,680																		

Subtotal	Amenity	Expenditures 330,841$													 44,655$														 19,970$														 18,164$														 14,469$														 22,775$														 34,461$														 18,002$														 25,000$														 32,788$														 33,158$														 32,508$														 -$																												 295,950$													

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 330,841$													 58,788$														 35,924$														 30,479$														 23,209$														 40,836$														 49,695$														 32,524$														 38,179$														 50,352$														 50,395$														 61,264$														 -$																												 471,644$													

Total	Expenditures 330,841$													 80,391$														 41,884$														 39,056$														 37,997$														 52,787$														 55,559$														 39,844$														 47,909$														 56,834$														 64,743$														 67,278$														 -$																												 584,282$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 581,069$													 (80,137)$												 (26,621)$												 455,873$											 (34,340)$												 14,230$														 115,661$											 (33,210)$												 (31,073)$												 (44,548)$												 (62,916)$												 (67,278)$												 -$																												 205,642$													

Other	Financing	Sources/Uses:

Transfer	In/(Out) (234,261)$											 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																														

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/Uses (234,261)$											 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																												 -$																														

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 346,808$													 (80,137)$												 (26,621)$												 455,873$											 (34,340)$												 14,230$														 115,661$											 (33,210)$												 (31,073)$												 (44,548)$												 (62,916)$												 (67,278)$												 -$																												 205,642$													

Month	to	Month



Page	15

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Original	Issue	Amount: $2,500,000
Interest	Rate: 5.45%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2037

Bonds	Outstanding	-12/10/2015 $2,500,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/16 ($65,000)
Less:	Special	Call-	8/1/16 ($30,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/1/16 ($130,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	2/1/17 ($10,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	5/1/17 ($60,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/17 ($65,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	8/1/17 ($30,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/18 ($60,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/1/18 ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/19 ($65,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/1/19 ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20 ($70,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	8/1/20 ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21 ($70,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($90,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($80,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $1,660,000

Original	Issue	Amount: $1,930,000
Interest	Rate: 5.44%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2037

Bonds	Outstanding	-12/10/2015 $1,930,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/17 ($50,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	2/1/18 ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/18 ($55,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	5/1/18 ($170,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/19 ($45,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/1/19 ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20 ($55,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21 ($50,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	5/1/21 ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($60,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($55,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	5/1/23 ($5,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $1,370,000

Original	Issue	Amount: $3,850,000
Interest	Rate: 6.70%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2037

Bonds	Outstanding	-12/10/2015 $3,850,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/17 ($85,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/18 ($90,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/19 ($100,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20 Tapped	into	Reserves ($105,000)
Less:	Refunded	with	Series	2020	-	10/20/20 ($1,100,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21 ($75,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/1/21 ($5,000)
Less:	Srefunded	with	Series	2022-	2/1/22 ($1,890,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($20,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($15,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $365,000

Series	2015	A-1	Capital	Improvement	Refunding	Bonds

Series	2015	A-2	Capital	Improvement	Refunding	Bonds

Series	2015	A-3	Capital	Improvement	Refunding	Bonds



Page	16

Rolling	Hills
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Original	Issue	Amount: $2,625,000
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: 100%	of	MADS

Interest	Rate: 3.375% $235,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2025

Interest	Rate: 3.875% $285,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2030

Interest	Rate: 4.625% $805,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2040

Interest	Rate: 4.875% $1,300,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2050

Bonds	outstanding	-							10/20/2020 $2,625,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21 ($40,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($45,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($50,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding: $2,490,000

Original	Issue	Amount: $1,840,000
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: 100%	of	Annual	Interest

Interest	Rate: 4.75%
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2030

Bonds	outstanding	-							10/20/2020 $1,840,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($425,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	8/1/23 ($25,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding: $1,390,000

Original	Issue	Amount: $6,130,000
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: 100%	of	Annual	Interest

Interest	Rate: 3.125% $625,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2027

Interest	Rate: 3.400% $725,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2032

Interest	Rate: 3.750% $1,935,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2042

Interest	Rate: 4.000% $2,845,000.00
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2052

Bonds	outstanding	-							2/28/2022 $6,130,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($115,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding: $6,015,000

Original	Issue	Amount: $4,740,000
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: 100%	of	Annual	Interest

Interest	Rate: 3.650%
Maturity	Date: May	1,	2032

Bonds	outstanding	-							2/28/2022 $4,740,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/24 	

Current	Bonds	Outstanding: $4,740,000

Series	2020	A-1	Capital	Improvement	Refunding	Bonds

Series	2020	A-2	Capital	Improvement	Refunding	Bonds

Series	2022	A-1	Capital	Improvement	Refunding	Bonds

Series	2022	A-2	Capital	Improvement	Revenue	and	Refunding	Bonds



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2023 Assessments Receipts Summary

ASSESSED
# O&M UNITS 

ASSESSED
SERIES 2015A-1 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2015A-2 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2015A-3 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2020A-1 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2022A-1 
DEBT ASSESSED

FY23 O&M 
ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

GARDEN STREET 247                              -                                -                                -                                -                348,122.00            294,845.30            642,967.30 
WALTHAM DEV 139                              -                165,981.25            165,925.09            331,906.34 

TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES (1) (2) 386                              -                                -                                -                165,981.25              348,122.00            460,770.38            974,873.63 

ASSESSED REVENUE TAX ROLL 375              172,800.58              136,800.46                40,698.47                              -                                -              447,639.75            797,939.25 

TOTAL ASSESSED 761             172,800.58             136,800.46                40,698.47             165,981.25             348,122.00            908,410.13         1,772,812.88 

DUE / RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2015A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-2 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-3 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2020A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2022A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED  O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED

GARDEN STREET               160,101.04                              -                                -                                -                254,270.80            228,595.46            482,866.26 
WALTHAM DEV                 99,446.73              130,397.77            102,061.84            232,459.61 

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIVED               259,547.76                              -                                -                                -                130,397.77              254,270.80            330,657.30            715,325.87 

TAX ROLL DUE / RECEIVED                  (1,722.68)              173,173.64              137,095.79                40,786.33                              -                                -              448,606.17            799,661.93 

TOTAL DUE / RECEIVED               257,825.08             173,173.64             137,095.79                40,786.33             130,397.77             130,397.77            779,263.47         1,514,987.80 

(1) D/S Direct Assessments are due: 35% due 12/1/22, 4/1/23 and 30% due 9/1/232
(2)  O&M is due 25% by 10/1/22, 1/1/23, 4/1/22, 7/1/23
(3) Series 2020A-2 and 2022A-2 Bonds are to be paid off at closing and are invoiced semi-annually for remaining interest due

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION DATE RECEIVED
SERIES 2015A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-2 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-3 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2020A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2022A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED

1 11/9/2022 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                        
2 11/16/2022 3,890.46                3,079.95                916.29                   -                          10,078.25            17,964.95             
3 11/28/2022 777.54                   615.56                   183.13                   -                          2,014.23               3,590.46               
4 12/12/2022 155,931.03            123,445.40            36,725.30              -                          403,939.21          720,040.94           
5 12/20/2022 7,521.74                5,954.71                1,771.54                -                          19,485.04            34,733.03             
6 1/11/2023 957.05                   757.66                   225.41                   -                          2,479.24               4,419.36               
7 2/6/2023 264.12                   209.09                   62.21                      -                          684.19                  1,219.61               
8 3/7/2023 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                        
9 4/7/2023 2,161.75                1,711.38                509.14                   -                          5,600.01               9,982.28               

10 5/8/2023 1,113.30                881.36                   262.21                   -                          2,884.00               5,140.87               
11 6/8/2023 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                        

TAX CERTIFICATES 6/21/2023 556.65                   440.68                   131.10                   -                          1,442.00               2,570.43               
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                        

TOTAL RECEIVED TAX ROLL             173,173.64             137,095.79                40,786.33                              -                                -              448,606.17            799,661.93 

PERCENT COLLECTED 2015A-1 2015A-2 2015A-3 2020 2022 O&M TOTAL
%  COLLECTED DIRECT BILL 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 78.56% 73.04% 77.53% 75.10%

% COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100.22% 100.22% 100.22% 0.00% 0.00% 100.22% 100.22%
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 100.22% 100.22% 100.22% 78.56% 37.46% 85.78% 85.46%



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Check	Register

Date check	#'s Amount

8/1-8/31 3051-3063 $51,936.36

TOTAL $51,936.36

Rolling	Hills
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Fiscal	Year	2023



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/25/23          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 08/01/2023 - 08/31/2023 ***       ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/07/23 00026 8/03/23 SSI11225 202307 330-57200-34500                                     *               80.00
JUL 23 - ADMIN FEE

8/03/23 SSI11225 202307 330-57200-34500                                     *               85.00
JUL 23 - SCHEDULING

CLAY COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE                                       165.00 003051
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00097 7/31/23 07312023 202307 330-57200-34500                                     *              168.00

SECURITY
JEFFREY DEESE                                                     168.00 003052

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00147 7/20/23 UG000010 202307 330-57200-34300                                     *              587.94

AUG 23 - REFUSE SERVICE
GFL ENVIRONMENTAL                                                 587.94 003053

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00003 8/01/23 252      202308 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,536.33

AUG 23 - MGMT FEES
8/01/23 252      202308 310-51300-35101                                     *              208.33

AUG 23 - WEBSITE ADMIN
8/01/23 252      202308 310-51300-35100                                     *               83.33

AUG 23 - IT
8/01/23 252      202308 310-51300-31300                                     *              625.00

AUG 23 - DISSEMINATION
8/01/23 252      202308 310-51300-42500                                     *               10.50

AUG 23 - COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,463.49 003054

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00153 7/31/23 3254270  202306 310-51300-31500                                     *            2,507.38

JUN 23 - LEGAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  2,507.38 003055

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00057 8/01/23 114727B  202308 320-53800-46400                                     *              513.00

AUG 23 - WATER MGMT
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            513.00 003056

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00149 8/02/23 13129561 202308 330-57200-52100                                     *            1,753.80

BLEACH MINIBULK
POOLSURE                                                        1,753.80 003057

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00170 7/21/23 20944    202307 330-57200-46000                                     *            4,940.91

REPLC PARTS PLAYGRND EQUP
PRO PLAYGROUNDS                                                 4,940.91 003058

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/07/23 00060 8/01/23 448      202308 330-57200-46100                                     *            1,155.17

AUG 23 - JANITORIAL SVCS
8/01/23 448      202308 330-57200-46700                                     *            1,228.50

AUG 23 - POOL MAINTENANCE

ROLL ROLLING HILLS  PPOWERS   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/25/23          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 08/01/2023 - 08/31/2023 ***       ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/01/23 448      202308 320-53800-34000                                     *            1,995.33
AUG 23 - CONTRACT ADMIN

8/01/23 448      202308 330-57200-34000                                     *            5,311.92
AUG 23 - FACILITY MGMT

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             9,690.92 003059
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/23 00016 8/04/23 JUL 23   202307 320-53800-43100                                     *            3,017.31

JUL 23 - WATER
8/04/23 JUL 23   202307 330-57200-43100                                     *              320.62

JUL 23 - WATER
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY                                   3,337.93 003060

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/23 00097 8/08/23 08082023 202308 330-57200-34500                                     *              168.00

SECURITY
JEFFREY DEESE                                                     168.00 003061

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/23 00060 6/30/23 445      202306 330-57200-34200                                     *            4,643.87

JUN 23 - LIFEGUARD SVCS
7/31/23 449      202307 330-57200-34100                                     *            2,467.50

JUL 23 - FACILITY ASST
7/31/23 450      202307 330-57200-34200                                     *            5,638.62

JUL 23 - LIFEGUARD SVCS
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                            12,749.99 003062

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/14/23 00034 8/09/23 19304    202308 320-53800-46200                                     *           10,890.00

NEW MULCH INSTALLATION
TREE AMIGOS                                                    10,890.00 003063

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 51,936.36

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               51,936.36

ROLL ROLLING HILLS  PPOWERS   



w4 dy cquhK,
,,

Bd $}1WF'9 QFFICE

P "" jl RemitTo: ClayCounty Sheriff'sOffice

Iq" " jV PO Box 548/901 N. OrangeAve
" a R

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043 Invoice Number: SSl11225
Invoice Date: 8/3/2023

(904) 284-7575
Page: 1

Attn: Fiscal - AccountsReceivable

Bill Ship
To: ROLLING HILLSCOD To: ROLLING HILLSCOD

3212 BRADLEYCREEKPKWY 3212 BRADLEYCREEKPKWY
GREENCOVE SPRINGS, FL 32043 GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043
PATTI POWERS PATTI POWERS

Customer ID C0000125
P.O. Number
P.O. Date 8/3/2023

Due Date 8/18/2023 Our Order No
Terms Net 15 Days SalesPerson

|tem/DescriDtion Unit OrderQtv Quantitv Unit Price Total Price

Fees-2ndEmployment AdminFeejULY2023 16 16 5,00 80.00
Fees-2ndEmployment Scheduling 1 1 85.00 85,00

AmountSubject to Sales Tax USO Subtotal: 165.00

Amount Exemptfrom Sales Tax 165.00 Invoice Discount: 0.00
Tax: 0.00

Total USO: 165.00



Page 1 of 2

CLIENT NAME INVOICE NUMBER

ROLLING HILLS

CLIENT NUMBER INVOICE DATE

08/03/2023

CLIENT ADDRESS

$

HOURS O' RATE TOTALEVENT DATE DESCRIPTION PERSONNEL QUANTITY

07/03/23
0000 " Rolling Hills1
07/03/23
0000

jeff Deese
07/05/23 $ $
2000- 4.00

42.00 168.0007/06/23
0000

EVENT $

TOTAL, (h's) 4.00 168.00

07/10/23

2 0000" Rolling Hills07/10/23
0000

JeffDeese
07/13/23 $ $
1030- 4.00 42.00 168.00
07/13/23
1430

https://claysomyodiss2.com/ods,printclient invoice excel.php 8/3/2023
_



Page 2 of2

EVENT $
TOTAL, (hrs)4.00 168.00

07/17/23

3 0000 - Rolling Hills07/17/23
0000

JeffDeese
07/24/23 $ $
1530- 4.00 42,00 168.0007/24/23
1930

EVENT
(hrs) 4.00

$
TOTAL: 168.00

07/24/23

' =2, Rolling Hills

0000

JeffDeese
07/31/23 $ $
1600; 4.00

42.00 168.00
07131 23
2000

EVENT (hrs) 4.00
$

TOTAL: 168.00

INVOICE $

TOTAL, (hrs) 16.00 672.00

https://clayso.myodiss2.conl/ods_print client invoice excel.php 8/3/2023



Jeffrey Deese
4990WindmillCou,1 CCSO (NF-MJTV INVOICE
Middleburg,FL 32068
904-219-0579
)adeese@c!aysheriff,com

INVOICEDATE
DATE:7-31-23

TO: FOR:

Rolling Hills CommunityDevelopmentDistrict PropertyManager
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd.
Green CoveSprings, FL 32043

DATE TIME
DESCRIPTION HOURS RATE AMOUNT

WORKED IN/OUT

7-31-23 NeighborhoodPatro1/Security 4.0 42.00 168.00

Checked preserve area.

Patrolledentiredevelopment

Checked Clubhouse, pool,and boardwalkarea,

Patrolledentire development,

Checked rearundevelopedarea.

Rained duringshift

DEPUTYSIGNATURE: TOTAL 168.00

Make all checks payable to JeffreyDeese

Thank you foryour business!



E'a'0
.

. Page 1 of 1
L

% GFL Environmental

Gd 26999 Central Park Blvd CUSTOMER#: UG103664
DUE DATE:

Suite 200 INVOICE #: UG0000109149
Due Upon Receipt

cnvl-n-enta SouthfieldMI 48076 INVOICE DATE: 07/20/2023
TOTALAMOUNTDUE: $587.94

P: (904) 760-5880 REF/PO#:

DATE ' DESCRIPTION REFERENCE RATE QTY AMOUNT

(0000)

7/20/23 CLAY COUNTYFRAN FEE 16.3% at 16.300% on $6.50 $1.06

SITETOTAL $1.06
(0001)
ROLLINGHILLSCOD

3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY
,

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL

Serv #001 COMM FL WASTEPERM 8YD

7/20/23 TRASH STANDARDSERVICE $314,75 1,00 $314,75

Aug 01/23 - Aug 31/23

7/20/23 FUEL SURCHARGE $184,29

7/20/23 CLAY COUNTYFRAN FEE 16,3% at 16.300% on $499.04 $81.34

SITETOTAL $580,38
(DODO)

,,
7/20/23 ADMIN FEE ' I) )1 )') I "$'""7 SC187866 $6.507

,. £

SITETOTAL $6.50

Notes:

Due to increased costs,yournext invoicemay reflecta price increase. To pay your
invoice on!ine,

pleasevisit
us at:

vvvvvv.gflenv.com/
pay-my-bHI/

CURRENT 31 - 60 DAYS 61 - 90 DAYS OVER90 DAYS ACCOUNT TOTAL TOTAL INVOICE $587.94
$587.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $587.94

Please return bottom portion with your payment. include customer and invoice numbers on check or moneyorder.

0 GFL Environmental
% 26999 Central Park Blvd CUSTOMER#: UG103664 DUE DATE: Due Upon Receipt

GF( Suite 200 INVOICE#: UG0000109149
AMOUNTOF REMITTANCE:

SouthfieldMI 48076 INVOICEDATE: 07/20/2023

·nv"onm'n"' TOTALAMOUNTDUE: $587,94 f" r/'-7 4) t 3

P: (904) 760-5880
$ ii !" i- i "i

PLEASE REMIT PAYMENTTO:

13886991-898-11 1 """"""AUTO"MIXEDAADC270

I|I|||t| rhhti j||n |j|l[nl| I il|lllil|hl|lr |Il|| |1

ii n q hl|l|rl|||llEllIllj |llllllIlhIij|l|ql1I||1l|{K|l||l|l|

.
ROLLINGHILLS COD

& ROLLINGHILLS GFL ENVIRONMENTAL

,
5385N NOB HILL RD PO BOX555193
SUNRISEFL 33351-4761 DETROITMl 48255-5193

00555l¶3UG0000lD¶l4¶00l03bb4000D0000D587¶u¶



Governmental ManagementServices, LLC invoice1001 BradfordWay
Kingston, TN 37763

Invoice #: 252
Invoice Date: 8/1/23

Due Date: 8/1/23

Bill To: Case:

Rolling Hills COD
P.O. Number:

475 WestTown Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine,FL 32090

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Management Fees - August 2023 jj"3- 3,536.33 3,536.33
Website Administration - August2023 .?yo] 208.33 208.33
Information Technology- August 2023 ?¶ ! 83.33 83.33
Dissemination AgentServices- August 2023 JI"i1 625.00 625.00
Copies "t:S 10.50 10.50

Total $4,463.49

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $4,463.49



KUTAK ROCK LLP CheekRemitTo:
KutakRockLLP

TALLAHASSEE,FLORIDA PO Box 30057
Telephone 404-222-4600 Omaha, NE 68103-1157
Facsimile 404-222-4654

ACFJ/WireTransfer RemitTo:
Federal ID 47-0597598 ABA #104000016

FirstNationalBankof Omaha

July 31, 2023 KutakRockLLP
A/C # 24690470

Reference: InvoiceNo. 3254270
ClientMatterNo. 17523-1

Notification Email:eftgroup@kutakrock.coin

MarileeGiles
Rolling Hills CDD
Governmental Management Services— St. Augustine
Suite 1 14

475 West Town Place
St. Augustine, FL 32092 InvoiceNo. 3254270

17523-1

Re: General

For Professional Legal ServicesRendered

06/06/23 j. Gillis 1.40 217.00 Draft resolution setting hearing,
notices of rule development and

rulemaking and resolution adopting
amenity suspension and termination
rules; draft proposedbudget approval
resolution, published notice,
appropriation and assessment
resolutions for FY 2024 budget
adoption; confer with staff regarding

same
06/13/23 K. Buchanan 5.00 1,600.00 Preparefor and attendboard meeting
06/16/23 K. Buchanan 0.30 96.00 Performmeeting followup
06/20/23 K. Buchanan 0.20 64.00 Reviewaudit responseletters
06/28/23 j. Gillis 0,30 46.50 Coordinate responseto auditorletter
06/29/23 K. Buchanan 1.20 384.00 Review proposed budget; prepare

budget notices

TOTAL HOURS 8.40

PRIVILEGEDAND CONFIDENTIAL
ATTORNEY-CLIENTCOMMUNICATION AND/OR WORK PRODUCT



KUTAK ROCK LLP
Rolling Hills CDD
July 31, 2023
Client MatterNo. 17523-1
InvoiceNo. 3254270
Page 2

TOTAL FOR SERVICES RENDERED $2,407.50

DISBURSEMENTS

Meals 6.00
Travel Expenses 93.88

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 99.88

TOTAL CURRENTAMOUNT DUE $2,507.38

PRIVILEGEDAND CONFIDENTIAL
ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND/OR WORK PRODUCT



MAKECHECKPAYABLETO: I PLEASE FILLOUT BELOWIFPAYING BY CREDIT CARD

~~~A"}',J(d.
.

VISA
,

- i)'
'" " TheLake Doctors,Inc,

" "' · r i "

jPostOffice Box 20122 card mjp,ii3ER exp, date
Tampa, FL 33622-0122 immature amouht PAlO

(904) 262-5500

ACCOUNTNUMBER DATE BALANCE
AI)DRES1SEE

D P/euse check //Mdi'essbe/clii'/:s i/7c(.)/'/'ect and/hd/Ci'?/e change on /e?vc/3cside 718674 8/1/2023 $513.00

ROLLING HILLSCOD
FREDDIE OCA ( Riverside Management
3212 BradleyCreek Pkwy The Lake Doctors
Green CoveSprings, FL 32043 Post Office Box 20122

Tampa, FL 33622-0122

00000000068777001000000011472700000005130065 PleaseReturn this portion with your payment

Invoice Due Date 8/31/2023 Invoice 1147278 PO #

Invoice Date Description Quantity Amount Tax Total

3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY,GREEN COVESPRINGS,FL ST AUGUSTINE,FL 32092
8/1/2023 WaterManagement - Monthly $513.00 $0.00 $513.00

Pleaseremitpayment for this month's invoice

Please provide remittance information when submitting payments, Credits $0.00

otherwise payments will be applied to the oldest outstanding invoices.
Adjustment $0.00

AMOUNTDUE

Total AccountBalance includingthis invoice: $2052.00 This InvoiceTotal: $513.00

Click the "Pay Now" link to submit paymentby ACH

Customer #: 718674 CorporateAddress

PortalRegistration#: 24822364 4651 Salisbury Rd, Suite 155
jacksonville, FL 32256

Customer Portal Link: www.lakedoctors.com/contact-us/

Set Up Customer Portal to pay invoices online, set up recurring payments, view payment history, and edit contact information



I:
, z'g; :']$

") ;,"U,.
t -

,_M sure ,
Invoice Date 8/2/2023

**< ' »1 A"£'1< a
'= ': !Jy> ' Invoice# 131295616781

.- %:Zg7"

1707Townhurst Dr Terms Net 20

HoustonTX 77043 Due Date 8/22/2023
ar@poolsure.com
800-858-POOL (7665) PO #
www.poolsure.com DeliveryTicket # SalesOrder#1345310

Delivery Date 8/2/2023

BillTo
Delivery Location Rolling Hills CDD PoolMain

Rolling Hills CDD Customer# 13rol025

3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. AZ License# #331721

Middleburg FL 32043
Rolling Hills COD Pool

. T
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway

Ship o Green Cove Springs FL 32043

LATE FEE:This constitutes notice under the truth in lencing act that any accounts remaining unpaid after the due date are subject to 1 1/2% per
month late charge and attorneyfees.

Item ID Item Quantity Units Rate Amount
115-300 Bleach Minibulk Delivered 600 gal 2.74 1,644.00

115-300 Bleach Minibulk Delivered 20 gal 2.74 54.80

Fuel Surcharge Fuel/EFS 1 ea 55.00 55.00

Subtotal 1,753,80
Shipping Cost (FEDEX GROUND) 0.00

Total 1,753.80
Amount Due $1,753,80

RemittanceSlip

Customer Amount Due $1,753.80
,.,r13ROL025 Amount Paid

) "7 CB ,)J
Invoice#

¢ '

131295616781 Make ChecksPayableTo
Poolsure
PO Box 55372
Houston,TX 77255-5372

l)[||j)||ll|!)!|l|)f!)||[||
131295616781



"", ' "" " " Pro Playgrounds
.U%i'" I,) )'j|;_j _;f _" 8490 Cabin Hill Road

QuoYe
">"

_ " ,,, , ,,,,, '11||"' Tallahassee,FL 32311 Dute Estimate#The Play & Recreation Experts
. " &

ProjectNume 'i:':'i"z° j)lAj), <::> 7/21/2023 20944

certified UBTIFIED-t GERjjFIEo
Rolling Hills COD (Lake Asbury PLrr ZYi:

,,
"

J):j, eg77,j €,'j,g
,

' Aglu7si'\
y, ,', '

'
'"

' sU % '"'"

Customer / Bill To Ship To
,

' '
,LM

GMS LLC 3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy ' 4g"jS
Jay Soriano Green Cove Springs, FI 32043 )u,n'
370 Oakleaf Village Pkwy
Orange Park, FI 32065 jijj )i')(t Itji7 jjj'i 7)1)(FU ]°!j)

Item Description Qty Cost Total:

Supply and deliver replacement parts for Lake

Asburyplayground equipment

**PLAYGROUND PARTS**

CPE TEX01200XX 48inch square platform for 5inch post 1 842.00 842.00
Expedition series with hardware

CPE TEX02257RXX 36inch ADA Transfer Station 5inch 1 3,286.71 3,286.71

RIGHT complete
Shipping Combined Shipping and Freight Charges 1 812,20 812.20

CLR Colors: powdercoated items beige 0.00

AGREEDANDACCEPTED: Subtotal: $4,940.91
If the abovetotal price, scopeof work, specifications,terms and conditionsare acceptable,
sign belowindicating your acceptanceand adhorizationfor Pro Playgroundsto proceed
wifh the workand/or sales transactiondescribed m this quotation. Upon signature and
payme in accordance with this quote, Pro Playgrounds will proceed with the workand/or Sales Tax: (7,5%) $0,00
sale r m ion.g11~"" Jay Soriano,Dir. Ops,' 8/1R3
SIgn kl«" '" Name / Title Date Total: $4,940,91

Te s and Conditions- Pricevalid for 30 daysand subjectto change,1, If installationis not includedwithyourpurchase,clientwill be responsiblefor coordinating,
receivingand unloadingof all goods, deliverydriverswill not helpunloadgoods.2. Clientwill be responsibleto inspectgoodsfor defect,damageor missingparts,
any deficiencyor missingpartsmustbe noted on deliveryslip. 3. Clientwill be responsiblefor costs due to cancelledor misseddeliveryappointments,4. Clienthas

reviewedall Items, colorsanddescriptionson thisquotefor accuracyand correctness,5, If quoteincludesinstallationof goods,the installationis subjectto the
termsand conditionsof Pro Playgrounds"StandardInstallationAgreement"a copyof which maybe obtainedfromyourSalesRepresentative.

1-800-573-7529
)

www.proplaygrounds.com



Riverside ManagementServices, Inc ?nvoice9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W.
Building300, Suite 305
jacksonvilk,fl 32257

Invoice#: 448
Invoice Date: 8/1/2023

Due Date: 8/1/2023

Bill To: Case:

RollingHillsCOD P.O. Number:
475 West1bwn Place
Suite114
St, Augustina,FL 32092

':t::?i.:i:::i':z'·:iii:"':,:'-.:'-:.-.:

':!,!2 '!' ";g :iji'i')?!, jijujiii'):i:!i:j,j ,,! ,jj,:' Descripti(jn,,,: :' j :::::'$ i':t" i' ') " u :",') " HOW$!Q1Y'", "' "" iRitC i :li'ji!: j'i! j!' Q,Untij!'i'i!','j

·" ">Z·-j--.··:., ..- ::
:.·.>.:,,.j,::"i«t:7?:L.z:µ:4-z:i::1'::·:·';::i:.z',.,:Z·":Z:i'.'r'c:21\i'.'3,',',·;'.:':4::)":,,7<'E.Ll'm3.-.:.=m="L."'";?t:::",Aiz:":z',k'.LL':a,:±.·:7.-}33;>,·,::;·A'.'.::' Z·.::.'..:'".:t-rmZ.'-·::>,::..·;,:.::i:>-;. ·'y.·'::i-:::-'.',. ·' .-. ....., -. . . . -: . " .

.'
. <' ::C:·:>".'. ':: -: c::: '- -.:' a-=j. . ,-':..\ ·." -... -: .-'.·.':S;:'-tL-.X'·:.. ·'-7>,X. .- -· ' m-.m;.·;'-':,"·,>

'

j,,330.57200.46100- janitorial Services - Aiigust 2023 'l),,j " "" 1,155.1[ 1,155.17
i,":a3015zz00;4610d'- kjol'Mulienai)¢.eiservlces"j'AUgu$t20Z$,i/: ::z ":1 ?1':' t';' 't |':::;j :" ':': ,,j ZZU ';)' 'i ,': 1, z8)5(j!!"!
i.d20.63800.34000

- Contract Administration
- August 2023"jz:> 3 -3¥ :y[[

' ' '1,995dj3 ' 1',6'95,33
:d=SZZ00j34000 g,Fa¢i|ity:Manag¢me'jt:'R(j!llng,Hillii!'; ugu$t'2923,¥'::'}'::i:":'"i' -,:'-:' '": ,:::!!,,::i':,6:$1i|gz ",,: ::y5,m92"'

3g":) ji7? in

USJ"
J

Total $9,690.92

Payments/Credits $0,00

Balance Due $9,690.92



Rolling Hills
UtilitySchedule

Clay CountyUtilityAuthority

Account# ServiceAddress jul-23
00244868 3212-l Bradley Creek Pkwy-Rclm $ 137.51
00244869 3212-2Bradley Creek Pkwy-Rclm $ 1,450.26
00253042 3212-3Bradley Creek Pkwy-lrr $ 1,292.03
00256584 3215-2Bradley Creek Pkwy-irr $ 137.51
00260347 3212-4Bradley Creek Pkwy-ResidentsClub $ 320.62

$ 3,337.93

Vendor#16
001,320.53800.43100 $ 3,017.31
001.330.57200,43100 $ 320.62

$ 3,337.93

t

D



3176 OldJenningsRoad,Middkburg, Florida 32068
[1/5:

L 4 \\ ( r)/ \[fk.. Please visit us on the web aE www,c!ayutility.org
- t€' a - Hours- Monday- Friday 8'tm-5pmPhone' 904-27?-5999 /'i:i;) i' '1 """ j

CUstomerName: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 08/04/2023 CUstomer #: 00244868

Service Address: 3212 -1 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation Route #: MC13020732

7@ ·G-S3¥t-·-.& @W' g,f%'NEmE:mmmmm% Clay CountyUtilityAuthoritywill hold a public rate

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current hearing on Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 7:00 PM, in
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage CCUA'SBoard Room, located at 3176 Old Jennings

Road, Middleburg, Florida.
Base Charges (Prepaid) 08/04/23 to 09/08/23 $0,00 ,

Consumption Charges Tier1 0,0 X 0.00 $0.00 Water lawns before 10 AM and after 4 PM when
Proration Factor: 0,0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 , .

Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 temperature and wind speed are at their lowestto reduc :

Tier4 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 loss fromevaporationand wind, This allows better
absorption,promotinghealthierlawnsand plants.

Alternative Water SupplySurcharge $0,00

Knowyourdays! Lawn and landscapeirrigation is allowedn(

more than two daysperweekon designateddays during
Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00 DaylightSavingsTime. Visit www.sjrwmd,com/
Consumption Charges 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 wateringrestrictionsto learn more.

# ,

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current Please pay $137.51 by 8125/2023 to avoida $3.00 late fee
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage Makecheckspayable to CLAY COUNTYUTILITY
68272411 2 07/31/23 31 73914 73914 C' AUTHORITY.
Base Charges (Prepaid) $137.51
Consumption Charges Tier1 0.0 X 0.85 $0.00
Proration Factor: 1.0333 Tier2 0.0 X 1,66 $0.00

Yourlast paymentof $137,51 was posted to your accountOl

Tler3 0,0 X 2,51 $0.00 08/01/2023,

( Other Charges )

SJRWMD Cost Recovery Charge $0.00
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00
Deposit Interest Refund $0.00

Current Charges $137.51
Previous Balance $0.00
Late Charge (If Applicable) $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $137.51

Please return thisportionwithpayment

· \.n' CQ""V
Clay County Utility Authority Bill Date 08/04/23

' ,)' A, ""

" '
3176 Old jennings Road Current Charges $137.51

t, ieja ,-:' Middleburg, Florida 320(38 CurrentChargespast Due After 08/25/23
'""\ ":;:W""

Lend A Helping Hand (If Applicable) $0 00

PreviousBalance $0.00

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer #:00244868 Total Amount Due $137.51

Route #:MC13020732
3212 -1 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation

Route Group:20
" ""i"" *,: '

ts%
; *" g"" t ' " @

AYC0804A 2000001079 54/1
'I!IllIlI||Il"Il||'I'|l|lIlI|IjIl|lll'|6lIIIIII'llI0lUlII'lIlIll

ROLLING HILLS CDD CLAY COUNTY UTILITYAUTHORITY

W ClO GMS-SF,LLC 3176 OLD JENNINGSROAD
5385N NOB HILL ROAD MIDDLEBURG,FL32068

SUNRISEFL 33351-4761

001244BL,B 0 P1C1,3020732 0000Qb3?Sb 0000000 0Bi2Si2023 (I D



[2/5]
3176 Old JenntngsRoad,Middleburg,Flonda 32068

,
<\..V. ('ul·;,/L.

PleaseVfSlt us on the web at www,cIayuulity.or£' " "" " ' '!i"}',/.j

fi,,,i,y,,,,,,S Hours: Monday - Friday,8am-5Pm Phone:904-272:5999 iu\1\.f i
!1

1.\....)

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 08/04/2023 Customer#: 002448(39

Service Address: 3212 -2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation Route #: MC13020734

IS 7 Clay CountyUtilityAuthoritywill hold a public rate

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current hearing on Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 7:00 PM, in
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage CCUA's Board Room, located at 3176 Old Jennings

Road, Middleburg,Florida.
Base Charges (Prepaid) 08/04/23 to 09/08/23 $0.00
Consumption Charges Tier1 (LO X 0.00 $0,00 Water lawnsbefore 10 AM and after 4 PMwhen
Proration Factor: 0,0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00

Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00 temperatureand wind speed are at their lowestto redua
Tier4 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 loss fromevaporationand wind.This allows better

absorption,promotinghealthierlawnsand plants.
Alternative WatersupplySurcharge $0.00

Knowyour days!Lawnand landscapeirrigation is allowednc

more than two days perweekon designateddays during
,

Base Charges (Prepdd) $0.00 DaylightSavingsTime. Visit www.sjmmd.coml
Consumption Charges 0.0 X clod $0.00 wateringrestrictionsto learn more,

"Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current Please pay $1450.26by 8/25/2023to avoid a $3.00 late
Number SIze Date Billed Reading Reading Usage fee. Make checkspayable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY
91332609 2 07/31/23 31 3485 4104 619 AUTHORITY.
BaseCharges (Prepaid) $137.51 '

Consumption Charges Tier 1 124.0 X 0.85 $105.40
Proration Factor: 1.0333 Tier2 41.3 X 1,66 $68,56

Your last paymentof $2698,46was posted to your account

Tier3 453,7 X 2,51 $1,138.79 on 08/01/2023,

( Other Charges
SJRWMD Cost Recovery Charge $0.00
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00
Deposit InterestRefund $0.00

Current Charges $1,450.26
Previous Balance $0.00
Late Charge (If Applicable) $0,00

TOTALAMOUNT DUE $1,450.26

Pleasereturn this portionwithpayment

"
= -.. " ..._4 -

S AF'A t-
.

"

,.
"""' ;t,""""i" Clay County Utility Authority Bill Date 08/04/23

':' ^ ' 3176 Old Jennings Road Current Charges $1,450.26
'"%",j?

,
.b"' Middlebury,Florida 32068 CurrentChargesPast Due After 08/25/23

' " .\{\'1"' Lend A Helping Hand ( If Applicable) $0.00
PreviousBalance $0.00

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer #:00244869 Total AmountDue $1,450.26

Route #:MC13020734
3212 -2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation

Route Group:20

r " ' :' ' " :' ""T%0 ¢
,

"
' "' °

AYC0804A 2000001080 54/2
'lllIlIII||Il"II||'l'II|lIl||IIIlllIl'lIIIIIIIl'I||0I'Il¶I|lII0l

ROLLING HILLS COD CLAYCOUNTY UTILITYAUTHORITY
clo GMS-SF,LLC 3176OLD JENNINGSROAD
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD MIDDLEBURG,FL 32068

SUNRISEFL 33351-4761

00i2UBh'j k 11C13020?3U 00D01,U50i2b 0000000 0625211123 [I D



.,,y "" i',' 3 176 Old JenningsRoad,Middleburg,Florida 32068
[3/5] )

Please vISit us on the web Lit www.clayutduyA)rE' iiiki ' i} "p'")^

'2,,: ::"
' HOurs: Monday -

Friday, Sam-5pm Phcme: 9M-272 5999
t :: ":' .J I

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 08/04/2023 Customer#: 00253042 I

Service Address: 3212-3 Bradley Creek Pkwy Irrigation Route#: MC13020736
.

§ Clay CountyUtility Authoritywillhold a public rate
i

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current hearingon Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 7:00 PM, in '

Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usag" CCUA'SBoard Room, located at 3176 Old Jennings
91663339 2 07/31/23 31 4601 4889 288 Road, Middleburg,Florida.
Base Charges (Prepaid) 08/04/23to 09/08/23 $91.06
Consumption Charges Tier1 82.7 X 1.57 $129.84 Waterlawnsbefore10 AM and after4 PM when
Proration Factor: 1.0333 Tier2 124.0 X 4.66 $577.84

Tier3 81.3 X 6.04 $491.05 temperatureand windspeed are at theirlowestto redua
Tier4 0.0 X 7.74 $0.00 loss from evaporationand wind. This allowsbetter

absorption,promotinghealthierlawnsand plants.
Alternative WaterSupplySurcharge $1.15

Knowyourdaysl Lawnand landscapeirrigation is albwdnc

morethan two daysperweekon designateddaysduring
Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00 DaylightSavingsTime, Visitwww.sjrwmd,com/
Consumption Charges 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 wateringestrictionsto learnmore.

P
.

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current Please pay $1292.03by 8/25/2023to avoid a $3.00 late
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage fee. Makecheckspayable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY

AUTHORITY.
Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00
Consumption Charges Tier1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00
Proration Factor: 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00

Your last paymentof $1610,31was posted to your account '

Tler3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 on 08/01/2023.

Water QualityReports are sentby email, onlineat

Other Charges wwwAayutility,org/wqrNVQR.pdf,or at our office.To
SJRWMD Cost Recovery Charge $1.09 receive a copy by mail, contact904-272-5999
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00
Deposit Interest Refund $0.00

Current Charges $1,292.03
Previous Balance $0.00
Late Charge (If Applicable) $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $1,292.03

Please return this portionwith payment 4=%=mg%mns
,,,,

.j,,;.4 t'cty,'., Clay CountyUtility Authority Bill Date 08/04/23

' '
, ,

i 3176 Old Jennings Road Current Charges $1,292.03

.i, b ' '

,
·«"' Middleburg, Florida 32058 CurrentChargesPast Due After 08/25/23

' G?, ,-i,,n§' '
Lend A Helping Hand (If Applicable) $0,00

PreviousBalance $0,00

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer#:00253042 Total AmountDue $1,292.03

Route #:MC13020736
3212-3 Bradley CreekPkwy Irrigation

Route Group:20

, ' g'BB" m
®

AYC0804A 2000001081 54/3
'IIl!llIl||l|"Il|I'l'II|IlIIljI!IIlIl'|vIllIIllUIlIUI'I|lIIIiIl|

ROLLING HILLS CDD CLAYCOUNTY UTILITYAUTHORITY
clo GMS-SF,LLC 3176 OLD JENNINGSROAD
5385N NOB HILLROAD MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068

SUNRISEFL 33351-4761

DIJ253D'li? 3 NCl30i21173E, IJQDD1,2¶2D3 (1000000 11Bi25i20i23 0 0



e 3" """\7. 3 176 OldJenninj's Road, Middleburg,Florida 32068 ' [4/5]
;

Pleasevisit us on the web at wwwAayuti|inu)rg
) , -. A r, '"m'3"

,,

:5,,'S"'

Hours: Mcmday- Friday,&m-Spm Phone:9(M-272-599' ['¢tiu i "
'

' '

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 0&/04/2023 Customer#: 00256584 I

Service Address: 3215-2 Bradley CreekPkwy Reclaimed Irrigation Route#: MC13020730

§ Clay CountyUtilityAuthoritywill hold a public rate
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current hearing on Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 7:00 PM, in )

Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usag' CCUA'SBoardRoom, locatedat 3176 Old Jennings
Road, Middleburg,Florida. '

Base Charges (prepaid) 08/04/23to 09/08/23 $0.00
i

Consumption Charges Tier1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 Water lawns before10 AM and after4 PM when
PmratbnFactor: 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00 .

Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 temperatureand wind speed are at their lowestto reduce
Tier4 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00 loss from evaporationand wind. This allows better

absorption,promotinghealthierlawnsand plants.
Alternative WaterSupply Surcharge $0,00

Knowyourdaysl Lawnand landscapeirrigation is allowedno
more than two days perweek on designateddaysduring

'

Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00 DaylightSavingsTime, Visitwww.sjmmd,com1
Consumption Charges 0.0 X clod $0.00 wateringrestrictionsto learn more.

. . . .

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current Please pay $137.51 by 8/2512023 to avoid a $3.00late fee.
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage Make checkspayable to CLAY COUNTYUTILITY
91332608 2 07/31/23 31 673 673 0 AUTHORITY,
Base Charges (Prepaid) $137.51
Consumption Charges Tier1 0,0 X 0.85 $0.00
Proration Factor: 1.0333 Tier2 0.0 X 1.66 $0.00

Your last paymentof $137.51 was postedto your accounton

Tier3 0.0 X 2.51 $0.00 08/01/2023.

'OtherCharges
SJRWMD Cost Recovery Charge $0.00
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00
Deposit Interest Refund $0.00

Current Charges $137.51
Previous Balance $0.00
Late Charge (If Applicable) $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNTDUE $137.51

Please return thisportion withpayment !m=m%%E= a
^

.
7 "

., \" i ""\3}" Clay County Utility At.tiio 'ty Bill Date 08/04/23

.
,,". 3176 Old Jennings Road Current Charges $137.51

'i .

6
( '

¢S"
"

Micjcileburg,Floricki 32068 CurrentChargesPast Due After 08/25/23
tt/j·Y.M""' Lend A Helping Hand (IfApplicable) $0.00

PreviousBalance $0.00

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer#:00256584 Total AmountDue $137.51

Route #:MC13020730
3215-2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation

Route Group:20

' B P " · ' " ' L @

AYC0804A 2000001082 54/4
'IIIl|IlIllIl"lIl|'I'IIlI|Il|II||l|l|'lllll|IlltllIKlqlIIIIllIfl

ROLLING HILLSCOD CLAYCOUNTY UTILITYAUTHORITY
ClO GMS-SF,LLC 3176 OLD JENNINGSROAD
5385NNOB HILL ROAD MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068

SUNRISEFL 33351-4761

Dlj25h584 0 HCb31j2073Cl 0001jDb3?5b 0000000 118i25i2023 D 0



.,,CS"%ii,
,

3 176 old JeitningeRmd, Middkburg, Florida 32()68 [5/5]

'
^:

\ Pieaw vrm us on the web at www dayutthtyorg µ\ju i f,; :!!:':i3

'(:i,jt:->i Hours: Monday - Friday,&am-5pm Phone,904-272-5999 ,

CustomerName: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 08/04/2023 Customer#: 00260347
:

ServiceAddress: 3212-4 Bradley Creek Pkwy Resident's club Route #: MC13020738 i

E Clay CountyUtility Authoritywill hold a public rate )

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current hearingon Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 7:00 PM, in '

Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage CCUA's Board Room, located at 3176 Old Jennings
70003704 2 07/31/23 31 300 303 3 Road, Middleburg,Florida. ,

BaseCharges (Pmpaid) 0&/04/23 to 09/08/23 $91.06
Consumption Charges Tier1 3,0 X 2.35 $7.05 Water lawnsbefore 10 AM and after4 PM when

,Proration Factor: 1.0333 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 ,
Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 temperatureand windspeed are at their lowestto reduce
Tier4 0.0 X 0,00 $0.00 loss from evaporationand wind.This allows better

absorption,promotinghealthierlawnsand plants.
Alternative WaterSupply Surcharge $1.15

Knowyour daysl Lawnand landscapeirrigation is allowed no

more than two days perweek on designateddays during
Base Charges (Prepaid) $206.20 DaylightSavingsTime, Visitwww.sjrwmd,com/
Consumption Charges 3.0 X 4.69 $14.07 wateringrestrictionsto learnmore,

. . .

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current Please pay $320.62by 8/2512023 to avoid a $3.00 late fee.
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage Make checkspayable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY

AUTHORITY.
Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00
Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00
Proration Factor: 0,0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00

Your last paymentof $320.62was postedto your accounton
Tler3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 08/0112023.

Water QualityReports are sent by email,onlineat
Other Charges www£|ayuti|jty.org/wqrNVQR.pdf,or at our office.To

SJRWMD CostRecovery Charge $1.09 receivea copy by mail, contact904-272·5999
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0,00
Deposit Interest Refund $0.00

Current Charges $320.62
Previous Balance $0.00
Late Charge (If Applicable) $0.00

TOTALAMOUNT DUE $320.62

Please returnthis portionwith payment

.
Un ' .

"

L \
>-1 (:Ui/·\7"i

'·

,. .. Clay County ijtdily Authority Bill Date 08/04/23
' ,;

. ,.
, 317Ci Old Jennings Road CurrentCharges $320.62

' ":. ju iS' Middleburg, Floiida 32068 Current ChargesPast Due After 08/25/23
"'%.- ,,,.,",\" - Lend A Helping Hand (If Applicable) $0.00

Previous Balance $0,00

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer #:00260347 TotalAmountDue $320.62

Route #:MC13020738
3212-4 Bradley Creek Pkwy Resident's Club

Route Group:20

· G B " ' " ' L 0

AYC0804A 2000001083 54/5
'[lIjlIIIj|l]"Ij]]'I'jl]|lIl]jlll]]j]']IjlIIIll'ljjEl'IlvIll'IFl

ROLLINGHILLS COD CLAYCOUNTY UTILITYAUTHORITY

Clo GMS-SF,LLC 3176 OLD JENNINGSROAD
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068

SUNRISEEL 33351-4761

1jD2b034? 4 NCb30i20738 000D03i20bi2 (JU000D0 [1&2521123 0 0



JeffreyDeese - E r4990 WindmillCou,t CCSO OH -IJUTV hNVUhC
Middleburg,FL 32068
904-219-0579
jad.e,es,e@cjak'sheriff".conj

INVOICEDATE
DATE:8-8-23

TO: FOR:

Rolling Hills CommunityDevelopmentDistrict PropertyManager
3212 BradleyCreek Blvd.

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

DATE TIME
DESCRIPTION HOURS RATE AMOUNT

WORKED JN/OUT

8-8-23 NeighborhoodPatro1/Security 4,0 42.00 168.00

Checked preservearea.

Patrolledentire development

Checked Clubhouse, pool, and boardwalkarea.

Patrolledentire development.

Checked rearundevelopedarea.

Roughly 7000 degrees outside1 think

Made contactwith constructioncrew in rear

DEPUTYSIGNATURE: TOTAL 168.00

Make all checks payable to JeffreyDeese

Thank you foryour business!



Riverside ManagementServices, Inc Pnvdce9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W.
Building 300, Suite 305
Jacksonville, FL 32257

1nvoice#: 445
Invoice Date: 6/30/2023

Due Date: 6/30/2023

B1)ITO: Case:

Rolling Hills COD P.O, Number:
475 WestTom Place
Suite 114
St, Augustine, FL 32092

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Lifeguard Services through june 2023 251.02 18.50 4,643.87

I,"')":j('}e'") ):")(")(,','"'"pt)-'] ()i)

A

J7
"

.
I 0

'C)

!,

V

Total $4,643.87
r

Payments/Ctedits $0.00

BafanceDue $4,643.87



ROLLING HILLSCDD

LIFEGUARD AND DECKMONITORS INVOICEDETAXL

Quantity n=ljntiQn Raka Arnnunt

251.02 Lifeguarding and Deck Monitor Services for ROLLINGHILLS $ 18.50 $ 4,643,87

Covers june 2023

Lifeguards & Deck Monitors #1.330.57200.34200

TOTAL DUE:
,

S 4,643.87,

P



ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
LIFEGUARD & DECK MONITORBILLABLEHOURSJUNE 2023

Date Hours Employee Description

6/1/23 5.13 K.L, Lifeguarding
6/1/23 4,90 M,H, Lifeguarding
6/1/23 5.83 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/1/23 5.80 A.A. Deck Monitor
6/2/23 5.78 K.L. Lifeguarding
6/2/23 5.42 M,H, Lifeguarding
6/2/23 5,73 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/2/23 5,83 A.A. Deck Monitor
6/3/23 5.85 K.L. Lifeguarding
6/3/23 5.77 A.R, Lifeguarding
6/3/23 5,78 A.A, Deck Monitor
6/4/23 5.62 K,L. Lifeguarding
6/4/23 5,68 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/4/23 5.72 A.A. Deck Monitor
6/8/23 5.37 K.L, Lifeguarding
6/8/23 5,72 a,r, Lifcguarding
6/8/23 5.75 A,A. Deck Monitor
6/9/23 5,75 K,L. Lifeguarding
6/9/23 5,70 A.R, Lifeguarding
6/9/23 5.57 A,A, Deck Monitor
6/10/23 5.60 K.L. Ufeguarding
6/10/23 5.65 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/11/23 5.62 K.L. Lifeguardirig
6/11/23 5.73 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/15/23 5.73 A,R. Lifeguarding
6/15/23 5.23 A,A. Deck Monitor
6/16/23 6,88 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/16/23 6.77 A.A. Deck Monitor
6/17/23 8.02 A,R, Lifeguarding
6/18/23 5,90 A,R. Lifeguarding
6/22/23 2.18 K,L. Lifeguarding
6/22/23 1.75 AR. Lifeguarding
6/22/23 1.67 A.A. Deck Monitor
6/23/23 3.90 K.L. Lifeguarding
6/23/23 3.38 A.R. Lifeguarding
6/23/23 3.18 A.A. Deck Monitor
6/24/23 3.30 K.L. Lifeguarding
6/24/23 3.17 A,R. Lifeguarding
6/24/23 3.05 A,A. Deck Monitor
6/25/23 5.88 K.L. Lifeguarding
6/25/23 5,78 A,R. Lifeguarding
6/25/23 5.68 A.A, Deck Monitor
6/29/23 5.85 K.L, Lifeguarding
6/29/23 5.55 A,R. Lifeguarding
6/29/23 5.65 A,A, Deck Monitor
6/30/23 5.87 K.L. Lifeguarding
6/30/23 5.75 A,R, Lifeguarding
6/30/23 5,60 A,A. Deck Monitor

GRANDTOTAL 251.02

Lifeguards 179.74
Deck Monitor 71.28



Riverside ManagementServices, Inc Znvoice9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W.
Building 300, Suite 305
jacksonville,FL 32257

Invoice#: 449
Invoice Date: 7/31/2023

Due Date: 7/31/2023

Bill To: Case:

Rolling Hills COD
P.O. Number:

475WestTown Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Facility Assistant through july 2023 98.7 25,00 2,467.50

t, ?>("1 C)
, yj"'"i :J ()C)k ij'"| t C) (.)

or
Total $2,467.50

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $2,467.50



ROLLING HILLS CDD

FACILITYASSISTANT

QjMHsuus R=tiptjQn Rake Anmitnt

98.7 FacilityAssistant $ 25.00 $ 2,467,50

covers Period: july 2023

GL # 001,300.57200.34100

TOTALDUE: $ 2,467.50



RMS ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITYDEVELOPMENTDISTRICT
ASSISTANTMANAGER BILLABLEHOURS

FOR THE MONTH OF JULY2023

Date ,Hour$ ,Emp,loyee Description

7/1/23 6.63 L.B. Completed daily checklist, returnedcalls and emails
7/2/23 5,95 L,B. Completeddaily checklist, returned calls and emails
7/3/23 6.5 L,B, Completed daily checklist, returnedcalls and emails
7/4/23 6.2 LB. Completeddailychecklist, returnedcalls and emails
7/7/23 5,67 L.B. Completed daily checklist, returnedcalls and emails

7/14/23 6.77 L.B. Completeddaily checklist, returnedcalls and emails
7/15/23 6.52 L.B. Completeddailychecklist, returnedcalls and emails
7/16/23 6,42 L,B. Completed daily checklist, returned calls and emails
7/20/23 5.57 L.B, Completed dally checklist, returned calls and emails
7/21/23 5,67 L.B. Completeddaily checklist, returned calls and emails
7/22/23 6,5 L,B, Completed daily checklist, returnedcalls and emails
7/23/23 6.5 L.B. Completed daily checklist, returned calls and emails
7/24/23 4 L.B. Completeddaily checklis(, returnedcalls and emails
7/28/23 6.37 L.B, Completeddaily checklist, returned calls and emails
7/29/23 6.93 L.B. Completed daily checklist, refumedcalls and emails
7/30/23 6,5 L,B. Completeddaily checklist, returned calls and emails

.

98.7

July 2023
'

1



Riverside ManagementServices, Inc Unvdce9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W.
Building 300, Suite 305
jacksonville,FL 32257

Invoice #: 450
Invoice Date: 7/31/2023

Due Date: 7/31/2023

Bill To: Case:

Rolling Hills COD P.O. Number:
475 WestTown Place
Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Description Hotws/Qty Rate Amount

Lifeguard and Deck Monitor Services through July 2023 304.79 18.50 5,638.62

l4'"^"3("),"";""i:)G'(),"jLij () C)

Uy-, ^g"

Total $5,638,62

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $5,638.62



ROLLING HILLS CDD

LIFEGUARDAND DECKMONITORS INVOICEDETAIL

QuantM R=suuiQn Rat!a Amsuink

304.79 Lifeguarding and Deck Monitor Services for ROLLING HILLS $ 18.50 $ 5,638,62

Covers july 2023

Lifeguards & Deck Monitors #1,330.57200,34200

TOTAL DUE: $ 5,638.62



ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
LIFEGUARD & DECK MONITOR BILLABLEHOURS JULY2023

ljatq ,Hwrs Employee Description

7/1/23 5,67 K,L, Lifeguarding
7/1/23 5,80 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/2/23 5.70 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/2/23 5,78 A.R. Llfeguardlng
7/4/23 5,77 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/4/23 5.70 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/6/23 6.23 K,L, Llfeguardlng
7/6/23 5.57 A.A. Deck blonitor
7/7/23 4.40 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/7/23 4,23 A,R. Lifeguarding
7/7/23 4,03 T,G. Lifeguarding
7/7/23 4,05 ILA, Deck Monitor
7/8/23 6.08 K,L, Lifeguarding
7/8/23 5.92 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/8/23 5,78 T.G. Llfeguardlng
7/8/23 5,65 A,A, Deck Monitor
7/9/23 6,02 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/9/23 5.72 A.R, Lifeguarding
7/9/23 5.67 T.G. Lifeguarding
7/9/23 5,58 A.A. Deck Monitor
7/13/23 5,72 K,L, Lifeguarding
7/13/23 5.48 T,G. Lifeguarding
7/13/23 5.63 A.A. Deck Monitor
7/14/23 6.88 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/14/23 6,68 T,G. Llfeguardlng
7/14/23 6.67 A,A, Deck b'lonitor
7/15/23 5.73 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/15/23 5,88 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/15/23 5,77 T.G. Lifeguarding
7/15/23 5.63 A,A, Deck Monitor
7/16/23 3.67 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/16/23 3,35 T,G. Lifeguarding
7/16/23 3.32 A.A, Deck Monitor
7/20/23 6.23 K,L. Lifeguarding
7/20/23 5.85 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/20/23 5,55 T.G. Lifeguarding
7/20/23 5.68 A,A, Deck Flonltor
7/21/23 5.67 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/21/23 5,58 T,G. Lifeguarding
7/22/23 5,68 A,R. Lifeguarding
7/22/23 4.67 T.G, Lifeguarding
7/23/23 2.73 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/23/23 2,67 T,G. Lifeguarding
7/27/23 5.65 K,L, l.lfeguardfrig
7/27/23 5.75 T.G. Lifeguarding
7/27/23 5,65 A.A. Deck Monitor
7/28/23 5,85 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/28/23 5,83 T,G, Lifeguarding
7/28/23 5,67 A,A, Deck Monitor
7/29/23 5,75 K.L. Lifeguarding
7/29/23 4.92 A,R, Lifeguarding
7/29/23 3,13 T,G, Lifeguarding
7/29/23 3.68 A,A, Deck Monitor
7/30/23 5.82 K.L. Llfeguardlng
7/30/23 5,82 A.R. Lifeguarding
7/30/23 5.57 T,G, Lifeguarding
7/30/23 5.63 A,A, Deck Monitor

GRAND TOTAL 304,79

Lifeguards 236,38
Deck Monitor 68.41



G InvoiceN Tree AnllAos 'nvo""'""0'
,

Date: 08/09/2023
Outdoor Services

Billed To: Riverside Management Services Project: Rolling Hills COD Enhancements
9655 Florida Mining Blvd 9655 Florida Mining Blvd

Bldg 300 Suite 305 Bldg 300 Suite 305

Jacksonville FL Jacksonville FL

Description Quantity Price Ext Price

Mulch Install

242 yards mulch @ $45.00 per yard 242.00 45.00 10,890.00

Notes:
InvoiceTotal: $10,890.00

5000-18 Highway 17 No. 235 Fleming island, FL 32003 Office: (904) 778-1030 Fax: (904) 778-1045
P,g,

Email:cryan@treeamigosoutdoor.comWebsite: www.TreeAmigosOutdoor.com 1 of 1


	Agenda
	III. B.        Acceptance of Resignation Letter from Supervisor Rhein 
	D.        Election of Officers, Resolution 2024-01 
	    IV.   Approval of Minutes of the June 13, 2023 and August 15, 2023 Meetings
	V. B. Ratification of Requisitions (101-102)
	            VI. B.                                                              Ratification of Requisitions (103-107) 
	            VII.                                                           Consideration of Amenity Facility Policy Updates 
	VIII. D. 1. Report
	XI.     A.   Balance Sheet & Income Statement
	B.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	C.        Check Register 



